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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

September 30, 2012 December 31,

(Unaudited) 2011 (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 458,10° $ 206,29¢
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 82 1,02(
Senior intere-only 128,86¢ 188,67
Subordinate! 509,06: 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only 16,861 22,01¢
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,997,21. 3,144,53.
Accrued interest receivab 17,767 22,70¢
Other asset 13,31¢ 1,40
Subtotal 3,141,28. 4,193,55!
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Nor-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabteriest entities ("VIEs"), at fair valt 3,235,57. 3,270,33
Securitized loans held for investment, net advaéince for loan losses of $11.3 million and $:
million, respectively 1,136,92: 256,63:
Accrued interest receivak 25,21¢ 26,61¢
Subtotal 4,397,71 3,553,58!
Total asset $ 7,538,99. $ 7,747,13!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.7 billi@h$h8 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 1,658,901 $ 2,672,98
Accrued interest payab 2,43¢ 3,29¢
Dividends payabli 92,41¢ 112,93
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,28¢ 1,68
Investment management fees and expenses payadifditde 11,53 12,95¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 59,07: 44,46°
Subtotal 1,825,64! 2,848,33
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIES
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency B3 ($3.2 billion and $3.3 billion
pledged as collateral, respective 1,252,75: 1,630,27
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldriwestment ($1.2 billion and $238.0 million
pledged as collateral, respective 1,033,92! 212,77¢
Accrued interest payab 8,47 8,13(
Subtotal 2,295,15 1,851,18
Total liabilities $ 4,120,80. $ 4,699,511
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1000000hares authorized, 0 shares issued and
outstanding, respective - -
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,50000006hares authorized, 1,027,505,028 anc
1,027,467,089 shares issued and outstanding, tesge: 10,26¢ 10,267
Additional paic-in-capital 3,604,09 3,603,73!
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 852,35’ 433,45!
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,048,53) (999,840
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,418,18! $ 3,047,61!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,538,99. $ 7,747,13

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finansialtements.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

(unaudited

For the Quarter Ende

For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 36,57¢ $ 68,77¢ 139,92¢ $ 197,71¢
Interest expens (2,28)) (3,149 (7,080 (9,160
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 108,12( 116,80! 315,96: 339,76!
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (32,075 (29,647) (85,609 (95,007)
Net interest income (expens 110,34( 152,78 363,20 433,32:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,719 (78,950 (47,269 (161,924
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceine
(loss) (7,307 (71,610 (76,80 (83,989
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (10,019 (150,56() (124,065 (245,91)
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s (4,429 (25,317 (14,607 (34,98)
Net realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,299 (4,500 (14,89() (11,649
Net gains (losses) on interest rate swaps (9,725 (29,817) (29,497 (46,62%)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (15,399 (17,600 22 (1,617
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investrr 69,15t 58 85,16¢ 1,78
Total other gains (losse 44,03 (47,359 55,69( (46,449
Net investment income (los 144,36: (45,12%) 294,82¢ 140,95¢
Other expenses
Management fee 13,051 13,25: 38,86: 39,15¢
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,910 - (1,910 -
Net Management fee 11,141 13,252 36,95 39,15«
Provision for loan losses, n 49€ - (39€) 1,44z
General and administrative expen 4,65¢ 1,83( 9,18¢ 5,13
Total other expense 16,29t 15,08 45,74¢ 45,73:
Income (loss) before income taxe 128,06¢ (60,207 249,08 95,22¢
Income taxe: - (177) 2 645
Net income (loss $ 128,06¢ $ (60,030 $ 249,08. $ 94,58
Net income (loss) per share available to commc
shareholders:
Basic $ 0.1z $ (0.06) $ 024 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 0.1z $ (0.06 $ 024 $ 0.0¢
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,026,841,08 1,026,404,03 1,026,804,42 1,026,308,07
Diluted 1,027,505,03 1,027,195,40 1,027,499,97 1,027,130,13
Dividends declared per share of common stoc $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1z 0.2¢ $ 0.4C
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 128,06¢ $ (60,03¢) 249,08: $ 94,58
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni 260,89: (41,867) 380,00 (258,25
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt

income (loss) for other-than- temporary credit iimpant

losses 10,01« 150,56( 124,06! 245,91
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggais)

included in net income (los (69,15%) (58) (85,16%) (1,789
Other comprehensive income (lo 201,75( 108,63¢ 418,90« (14,127




Comprehensive income (los $ 329,81¢ $ 48,600 $ 667,98 $ 80,45«

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Accumulated Retained
Common Additional Other Earnings
Stock Paid- Comprehensiv  (Accumulate:
Par Value in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 $ 3,601,890 $ 680,12. $ (613,68) $ 3,678,58
Net income - - - 94,58: 94,58:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-dafe securities
net - - (258,25 - (258,25
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 245,91: - 245,91:
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggesns

included in net income (los - - (1,787 - (1,787
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinves 3 78¢ - - 78€
Proceeds from common stock offerir 7 - - 7
Proceeds from restricted stock gra - 36C - - 36C
Common dividends declared, $0.40 per sl - - - (410,549 (410,544
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,603,040 $ 665,99t $ (929,65) $ 3,349,64
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,45 $ (999,84() $ 3,047,611
Net income - - - 249,08: 249,08:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-$ate securities
net - - 380,00:- - 380,00:-
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 124,06! - 124,06!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeins

included in net income (los - - (85,165 - (85,165
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvers 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gra - 242 - - 242
Common dividends declared, $0.29 per sl - - - (297,77 (297,779

Balance, September 30, 20 $ 10,26¢

$ 3,604,009 $ 852,35° $ (1,048,53) $ 3,418,18

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:

For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, September 30,
2012 2011

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 249,08: $ 94,58
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (44,745 (43,420)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 6,48( 1,29¢
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetmipremiums, ne 3,46¢ 9,45
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s 14,60 34,98
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS (22 1,611
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (85,165 (1,789
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 124,06! 245,91:
Provision for loan losses, n (39€) 1,442
Equity-based compensation expe! 242 36C
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivaét 5,45¢ (6,597

Decrease (increase) in other as 952 79C
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and dbdities (39§ 1,19(

Increase (decrease) in investment management fidlesx@enses payable to affilic (1,427) 99t

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payahl (519 (10%)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 271,69( 340,70t
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:

Purchase (119,429 (3,664,51)

Sales 943,35( 670,86:

Principal payment 549,47¢ 408,03(
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI

Principal payment 394,64 541,34¢
Securitized loans held for investme

Purchase (1,185,66) -

Principal payment 297,92: 65,34
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 880,29¢ (1,978,92)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem 5,114,75! 12,863,36

Payments on repurchase agreem (6,128,84) (10,500,97)

Net proceeds from common stock offerit - 7

Payment of deferred financing co (8,079 -

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coldditszd by loans held for investme 1,113,15. -

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaizzdlby loans held for investme (292,56Y) (61,059

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colddised by No-Agency RMBS - 311,01

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaizzdlby Nol-Agency RMBS (380,43) (520,73()

Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividendresimen 117 78€

Common dividends pai (318,296 (451,546
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (900,18 1,640,86:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 251,80t 2,651
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 206,29¢ 7,17:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 458,100 $ 9,82¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 417510 $ 485,31«

Interest paic $ 89,717 $ 93,95:

Taxes paic $ - $ 3

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 40,29C $ 38,64(

Non-cash investing activities:




Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 418,90 $ (14,127

Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 92,41¢ $ 133,44

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial puibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendéddegulations promulgated thereunder (the "Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008;iiGéra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Sgddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a whobiyrned subsidiary of Chimera As
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clvading Company LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIDsidiary (“TRS").

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shardse Company is managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC™y) smvestment advisor registered with the Securiied Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
Restatemer

The Company restated its previously issued (i) Chdated Statement of Financial Condition includedts Annual Report on Form 10-K as
of December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated StatesnehOperations and Comprehensive Income, CoreteliiStatements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity, and Consolidated Statemeh@ash Flows for the years ended December 31, 268?009, including the cumulative
effect of the Restatement on Retained Earningsy#cdated Deficit) as of the earliest period presdrithe “Restatement”) as part of its
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 Réstatement also impacted each of the quartetsdgeriods beginning with the
Company’s inception in November 2007 through thartgr ended September 30, 2011. The historitaliim periods included in this Form
10-Q reflect the Restatement.

Immaterial Restateme

The Company corrected amounts previously reportéitbtal other-than-temporary impairments (“OTTI8skes and the Portion of loss
recognized in other comprehensive income (losH)eénConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income as the previous
presentation was reported on a cumulative basis.cliirent presentation reflects only that portibatal other-than-temporary impairments
loss and the Portion of loss recognized in othemmehensive income (loss) that is incrementallierreporting period by giving
consideration to both the credit and portions offOfEported in Other comprehensive income (loss)) r@eognized in prior periods. For the
three and nine month periods ended September 3Q, #te previously reported Total other-than-terappimpairments losses of $151.3
million and $293.9 million was reduced by $72.4limil and $132.0 million, respectively. This changes fully offset by an adjustment to
the previously reported Portion of loss recogniedther comprehensive income (loss) of $728 thodsand $48.0 million, respectively. T
corrections had no impact on any previously regbNet other-than-temporary credit impairment losbest income (loss), Other
comprehensive income (loss), Net income (lossgpare available to common shareholders or Consetiddtatements of Cash Flows.

(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepasetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St@t@®AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustits considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positiesuits of operations and cash flows have beendediu The accompanying unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements shoulddael in conjunction with the consolidated finahstatements and the related
management’s discussion and analysis of finanoiatlition and results of operations filed with ourrval Report on Form 1R-for the fisca
year ended December 31, 20

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIEST) which the Company is the primary beneficiaryl gignificant intercompany balances and transasi
have been eliminated in consolidation.




VIEs are defined as entities in which equity ineest(i) do not have the characteristics of a cdimigpfinancial interest, and/or (ii) do not
have sufficient equity at risk for the entity todince its activities without additional subordinafimancial support from other parties. The
entity that consolidates a VIE is known as its @riynbeneficiary, and is generally the entity wilhtlie power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE’s economic performanaed (ii) the right to receive benefits from thEE\Or the obligation to absorb losses of
the VIE that could be significant to the VIE. RdiEs that do not have substantial on going actsitithe power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact the VIES’ economic perfance may be determined by an entity’s involveraétit the design and structure of the
VIE.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. Prior to January 1, 2010,
these VIEs met the definition of Qualified Spedtalrpose Entities (“QSPE") and, as such, were nigjestito consolidation by the Company.
Effective January 1, 2010, all such VIEs were co@sd for consolidation based on the criteria ilCA8.0,Consolidationresulting in the
consolidation of certain VIEs that were not presgiguconsolidated. Non-Agency RMBS transferred tosmidated VIES are composed
entirely of senior certificates.

(b) Statement of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company'’s consolidated statements of finardatition separately present: (i) the Company’sdiassets and liabilities, and (i) the
assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs arenarecourse to the Company.

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehidles to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furttisaggregated presentation would not be more mehunirihe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s daeséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslibf consolidated securitization

vehicles. See Note 8 for additional informatiolated to the Company’s investments in consolidatairritization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handaasihddeposited overnight in money market fundsghvhre not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@&orporation. There were no restrictions on eashcash equivalents at September 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in obtigns backed by pools of mortgage
loans. The Company delineates between (1) AgedBRand (2) Non-Agency RMBS as follows: Agency RMBI® mortgage pass-
through certificates, collateralized mortgage dodiigns (“CMOs”),and other RMBS representing interests in or ohiigatbacked by pools
mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by agenctbs &f.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or felyechhrtered corporations such as
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae where principal and @gerepayments are guaranteed by the respectimeyagéthe U.S. Government or
federally chartered corporation. Non-Agency RMBBS iaot issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government@uger other institution and are
subject to credit risk. Repayment of principal amdrest on Non-Agency RMBS is subject to the penfance of the mortgage loans or
RMBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as availabledale, records investments at estimated fair vaduweacribed in Note 5 of these consolid
financial statements, and includes unrealized gamuslosses considered to be temporary on all RMR8uding interest-only strips, in other
comprehensive income (loss) in the ConsolidateteB8tants of Operations and Comprehensive Incomterelst-only strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and
Comprehensive Income. From time to time, as gaft@overall management of its portfolio, the Camyp may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or lsssa@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated &tiés of Operations and Comprehen:
Income utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest inccanel impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:




Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS seacesitraries depending on the characteristics ofeberiy as follows:

Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other CoSsSC 310-20")is applied to the recognition of interest incometfe following securitie:

e Agency RMBS
e Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to hereaitetNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized arealiing agency. The Company uses the lowestgatiailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid suai the Company would not recover substantiallyodlits
recorded investmen

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premsiand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexe securities, is recognized over
the life of such securities using the interest rndthased on the contractual cash flows of the #gcuin applying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrepats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation resulthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the revsepayment assumptions and a corresponding Be@adecrease in reported interest
income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount aatchtie not of high credit quality at the time ofghase are accounted for under A
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality(*ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefSASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3Béffollowing conditions are met as of the acqignidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit gyadit the security from its inceptio
2. Itis probable that the Company will be unabledbect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atitguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (defineslrated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otiggettled in such a way that the Company woutdewmver substantially all
its recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gt&uality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates
of cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based oagemens estimate for each security of 1
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabservation of current market information and ideassumptions related to fluctuations
in prepayment speeds and the timing and amouneditdosses. Quarterly, the Company reviews drappropriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analyesesved from external sources, internal modeld,tha Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credids, and other factors. Changes in the amoufuarairding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated &t ldist evaluation date, are considered to be githstive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesbr adverse change in cash flows that doesasuit in the recognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment results in a prospedticecase or decrease in the effective interestused to recognize interest income. For
securities accounted for under ASC 310-30, onlyificant positive changes are reflected prospebtivethe effective interest rate used to
recognize interest income. Adverse changes in ftasis expected to be collected are generally égtabnsistently for RMBS accounted for
under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30, and generalhtrestecognition of an other-than-temporary impaént with no change in the effective
interest rate used to recognize interest income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its securities for OTflthe Company intends to sell an impaired sig&guor it is more-likely-than-not that the
Company will be required to sell an impaired sagusefore its anticipated recovery, then the Comgpanst recognize an OTTI through a
charge to earnings equal to the entire differerte/den the investment’s amortized cost and itsvine at the measurement date. If the
Company does not intend to sell an impaired sgcarit it is not more-likely-than-not that it woude required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company must further evaltieesecurity for impairment due to credit lossd® €redit component of OTTI is
recognized in earnings and the remaining or nodiccemponent is recorded as a component of OQlowing the recognition of an OTTI
through earnings, a new amortized cost basis ébkstted for the security and subsequent recovaritzsr value may not be adjusted through
earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toageilinpaired security or will more-likely-tharet be required to sell an impaired sect
before recovery, the Company makes judgments threider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anditglto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioesbhaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, teednination of OTTI, its timing and amount, is éd®n estimates that may change materially
over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtaf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuesfprmance of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans, including timing xjpected future cash flows, prepayment rates, defatds, loss severities, delinquency rates,
percentage of non-performing loans, extent of ¢r=afpport available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FIG®&Cores at loan origination, year of
origination, loan-to-value ratios, geographic cartcations, as well as reports by credit rating &ges) such as Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or FitchifRgs, Inc., general market assessments and dialegth market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s @matp determine the expected cash flows for itsBSM

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHGredit Quality involves comparing the presertigaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@Eecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value ¢
expected future cash flows is based on the se@ugffective interest rate as calculated under 83GQ-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in
the security as of the last measurement datejhelpresent value of the remaining cash flows etgoketo be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, an OTTI is recognized iniagaifor the difference. This amount is considdrede the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost andaineralue of the security is considered to bepbgion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (l0ss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through easrfor the credit loss component, a new amortizest lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may netdjiested through earnings.




Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingzhwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thlhe amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e es@vchanges in either the amount or timing of fas¥s from those previously expected).

The other-thariemporary impairment is separated into a cred@ tmsmponent that is recognized in earnings ang@ahton of loss recognize

in other comprehensive income (loss). The creditmonent is comprised of the impact of the fair eadiecline due to changes in assumptions
related to default (collection) risk and prepaynseithe portion of loss recognized in other compnshe income (loss) comprises the change
in fair value of the security due to all other fast including changes in benchmark interest ratesmarket liquidity. In determining the

OTTI related to credit losses for securities, tlenPany compares the present value of the remagdsl flows adjusted for prepayments
expected to be collected at the current finanepbrting date to the present value of the remaioasiy flows expected to be collected at the
original purchase date (or the last date thosenastis were revised for accounting purposes). T8o@dnt rate used to calculate the present
value of expected future cash flows is the effectiterest rate used for income recognition purp@sedetermined under ASC 328-or ASC
310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eamérfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not bessaljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttteat are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indodast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is sulifesignificant judgment and management’
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s
estimates of the future performance and projeatesuat and timing of cash flows expected to be ctdlé on the security. As a result, the
timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an accounésgimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in interest-only (“IO”) Agerayd Non-Agency RMBS. 10 RMBS represent the Companight to receive a specified
proportion of the contractual interest flows of tialateral. The Company has accounted for |0 RMB#fir value with changes in fair value
recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Staten@r®perations and Comprehensive Income. The Cagnpas elected the fair value
option to account for IO RMBS to simplify the reping of changes in fair value. The IO RMBS arelied in RMBS, at fair value, on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Finan@atd@ion. Coupon income on IO RMBS is accrued Hamethe outstanding notional
balance and the security’s contractual terms, amaftization is computed in accordance with ASC @P5Changes in fair value are presel
in Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest-oyBS on the Consolidated Statement of OperationsGordprehensive Income. Interest
income reported on 10 securities was $5.0 milliod &6.2 million for the quarters ended Septembe28@2 and September 30, 2011,
respectively. Interest income reported on 10 séesrwas $18.8 million and $20.5 million for thmma months ended September 30, 2012
September 30, 2011, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relagd Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratedoaviortgage loans are designated as
held for investment, and are carried at their ppialcbalance outstanding, plus any premiums, lesdnts and allowances for loan

losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the expected life of the $oasing the interest method. Income
recognition is suspended for loans when, basedformation from the servicer, a full recovery o€éme and principal becomes

doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when danlbecomes contractually current and performandemonstrated to be resumed. The
Company estimates the fair value of securitizedddar disclosure purposes only as described i Saif these consolidated financial
statements.

(g) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loanséfd for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhaief non-conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbeinge loans that are r
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8stcuritized loans are serviced and modified byird-party servicer. The Company is
involved in the loan modification process, exceptiarelates to the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2@IR4+2 securitization vehicle
consolidated by the Company that are collateraliedesidential mortgage loans. As it relateslgdte CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-
CIM2, the Company has the ability to approve cartaan modifications and determine the course tibado be taken as it relates to loan
technical default, including whether or not to pred with foreclosure.




The Company has established an allowance for lnssek related to securitized loans that is compasadjeneral and specific reserve. The
general reserve relates to loans that have notibdendually evaluated for impairment and is acetad for under ASC 450,

Contingencies The general reserve is based on historicalrktss for pools of loans with similar credit chaeaistics, adjusted for current
trends and conditions.

Certain loans are individually evaluated for impant, including securitized loans modified by teevicer and loans more than 60 days
delinquent under ASC 31®eceivables Loan modifications made by the servicer areustald to determine if they constitute troubled debt
restructurings (“TDRs"). A restructuring of a loaonstitutes a TDR if the servicer, for economidegial reasons related to the borrower's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to bmerower that it would not otherwise consider. linpent of modified loans considered to be
TDRs is measured based on the present value ot&xpeash flows discounted at the loan’s effedtiterest rate at inception. If the present
value of expected cash flows is less than the dezbmvestment in the loan, an allowance for laesés is recognized with a corresponding
charge to provision for loan losses. Impairmerdlbbther loans individually evaluated is measuasdhe difference between the unpaid
principal balance and the estimated fair valuéhefdollateral, less estimated costs to sell. To@@any charges off the corresponding loan
allowance and related principal balance when thecr reports a realized loss. A complete disarssif securitized loans held for
investment is included in Note 4 to these finanstatements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifigaortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitiih repurchase agreements. The
Company examines each of the specified criter3& 860,Transfers and ServicingASC 860”), at the inception of each transactiowl a
has determined that each of the Company’s repuechgieements meet the specified criteria in thidagice to be accounted for as secured
borrowings. None of the Company’s repurchase agee&srare accounted for as components of linkedacions. As a result, the Company
separately accounts for the financial assets pest@dllateral and related repurchase agreemetiie mmccompanying consolidated financial
statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans He for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmation of its residential mortgage loan and RMB&folios. Certain transactions
involving residential mortgage loans are accouideés secured borrowings, and are recorded asutieed loans held for investment” and
the corresponding debt as “Securitized debt, |behd for investment” in the Consolidated StatemehtiSinancial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentijlistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that hawemlptaced in a trust and pay interest and
principal to the debt holders of that securitizatidRe-securitization transactions classified axctiitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIES” reflect the tfans$o a trust of fixed or adjustable rate RMBS efhare classified as “Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIEs” that pay intesesd principal to the debt holders of that re-siization. Re-securitization transactions
completed by the Company that did not qualify dessare accounted for as secured borrowings pursu@&sC 860. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2012, the Company did notdmaveontinuing involvement, other than as a passivestor, with any loans or
securities previously sold, except as it relatethéoloans in the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CHé2uritizations as further described
above. The holders of securitized debt have nourse to the Company and the Company does noweeaaly interest or principal paid on
such debt. As of September 30, 2012 and Decenmbhe&0d1 the Company recorded $2.3 billion and $il@n in principal on securitized
debt and accrued interest payable, respectivelye aBsociated securitized debt is carried at anedrttost. The Company estimates the fair
value of its securitized debt for disclosure pugsoas described in Note 5 to these consolidateddinl statements.
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(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company'’s policies permit it to enter into #gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of managing
its interest rate risk. The Company intends toint®est rate derivative instruments to manageésteate risk rather than to enhance

returns. Interest rate swaps are recorded ag @isisets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statetmef Financial Condition and measured at
fair value. Net payments on interest rate swagsranluded in the Consolidated Statements of Céshdas a component of net income
(loss). Unrealized gains (losses) on interestsai@ps are removed from net income (loss) to aaivaash flows from operating activities.

The Company estimates the fair value of interestsaaps as described in Note 5 of these consetidatancial statements.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevigine of interest rate swap contracts. These aotsticontain legally enforceable provisi
that allow for netting or setting off of all indtial swaps receivable and payable with each cquartgrand, therefore, the fair value of those
swap contracts are reported net by counterpare cfedit support annex provisions of the Compaimj&rest rate swap contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requirithge party which is in a net payable position totpudlateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swaiptiacts, it also nets by counterparty any colidtexchanged as part of the interest rate swap
contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionglich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are computed on the average ctisidnghereby the Company records a gain or logb@udifference between the average
value of the asset and the proceeds from the saladdition, the Company from time to time sednei$ or re-securitizes assets and sells
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassdctions may be recorded as either sales aradsets contributed to the securitization are
removed from the Consolidated Statements of Fisd@dndition and a gain or loss is recognized,sosecured borrowings whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are naabgnized but rather the debt issued by the gexatidn are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatamtsre-securitizations, the Company may retainosenisubordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnaeidds to comply with provision of the Code, witlspect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state caloncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as
as certain asset, income and stock ownershipdestset. If the Company failed to qualify as a RBRH did not qualify for certain statutory
relief provisions, the Company would be subjedetteral, state and local income taxes and may édysted from qualifying as a REIT for
the subsequent four taxable years following the yreavhich the REIT qualification was lost. The Cpamy and CIM Trading made a joint
election to treat CIM Trading as a TRS. As suctMQrading is taxable as a domestic C corporatichsubject to federal, state, and local
income taxes based upon its taxable income.

The provisions of ASC 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 740", clarify the accounting for uncertairityincome taxes recognized in financial
statements and prescribe a recognition threshadraasurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken on a tax return. The
Company does not have any unrecognized tax bemleditsvould affect its financial position. The Coamy has not taken any tax positions
that would require disclosure under ASC 740. Naraals for penalties and interest were necessany 8sptember 30, 2012 or December
2011.

(n) Net Income per Share
The Company calculates basic net income per shyadévliling net income for the period by the baskighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments, such as unvested restricted

stock, but uses the average share price for thedier determining the number of incremental shaines are to be added to the diluted
weighted average number of shares outstanding.
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(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fgiates in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employ¢ASC 505-50"). Pursuant to ASC 5@® the Company measures the fair value o
equity instrument using the stock prices and otheasurement assumptions as of the earlier of dlileedtate at which a performance
commitment by the recipient is reached or the datehich the recipient’'s performance is completem@ensation expense related to the
grants of stock is recognized over the vestinggaeoif such grants based on the fair value of theksbn each quarterly vesting date, at which
the recipient’s performance is complete.

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the Company’s independent diredétoaccordance with ASC 718,
Compensation — Stock CompensafkSC 718"). Compensation expense for equity bamedrds granted to the Company’s independent
directors is recognized pro-rata over the vestiagog of such awards, based upon the fair valisioh awards at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions
how it expects them to change in the future, ieessonably possible that actual conditions coulthaterially different than anticipated in
those estimates, which could have a material adverpact on the Company'’s results of operationsi@nfihancial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting foonme recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-AgeR&BS and IO RMBS (Note 3),
valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 8 &) and interest rate swaps (Notes 5 and 9)uaAcesults could differ materially
from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accouiagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Ralance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company will be requicedisclose both gross information and net inforarat
about both instruments and transactions eligibl®ffset in the statement of financial position drahsactions subject to an agreement sir
to a master netting arrangement. The scope wauldde derivatives, sale and repurchase agreerapdteeverse sale and repurchase
agreements and securities borrowing and seculéieing arrangements. This disclosure is intertdezhable financial statement users to
understand the effect of such arrangements on ¢hep@ny’s financial position. This update is efifee for the Company for financial
statements presented beginning in the first quaft2013. This update will result in additionasdiosure but will have no impact on total
assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity, or Netame (loss).

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In June 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011a@mprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehehsooene, which attempts to improve
the comparability, consistency, and transparendinahcial reporting and increase the prominenciéenis reported in Other Comprehensive
Income (“OCI"). ASU 2011-05 requires that all nowner changes in stockholders’ equity be presesitbér in a single continuous
statement of net income and comprehensive incom@mseparate consecutive statements. Either miagsan requires the presentation on
the face of the financial statements any reclasgifin adjustments for items that are reclassifiech OCI to net income in the

statements. There is no change in what must lmetezhin OCI or when an item of OCI must be redfasbto net income. This update is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose years, beginning after December 15, 20tk Company adopted the provisions of
ASU 2011-05 effective January 1, 2012. Adoptio8lU 2011-05 did not have a significant impact lo@ Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
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On December 23, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 LGbfprehensive Income: Deferral of Effective DateMimendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Outafulnulated Other Comprehensive Income In ASU NHl-05, which defers those changes
in ASU 2011-05 that relate to the presentatiorecfassification adjustments out of accumulated Q@is was done to allow the FASB time
to re-deliberate the presentation, on the fac@@fihancial statements, of the effects of recfasgions out of accumulated OCI on the
components of net income and OCI. No other requergs under ASU 2011-05 are affected by ASU 2011H&SB tentatively decided not
to require presentation of reclassification adjwesita out of accumulated other comprehensive incamtbe face of the financial statements
and to propose new disclosures instead.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@prehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refieg$ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update addresses the disclosure issuedeft at the deferral under ASU 2011-12. This updeqeires the
provision of information about the amounts reclésgiout of accumulated OCI by component. In additit requires presentation, either on
the face of the statement where net income is pteder in the Notes, significant amounts recléasgibut of accumulated OCI by the
respective line items of net income but only if #mount reclassified is required under GAAP todmassified to net income in its entirety in
the same reporting period. For other amounts tteahet required under GAAP to be reclassified ®irtlentirety to net income, a cross-
reference must be provided to other disclosuresimed) under GAAP that provide additional detail abthose amounts. This update is
effective for the Company for financial statemgmissented beginning in the first quarter of 2018option of ASU 2013-02 is not expected
to have a significant impact on the consolidatedricial statements.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820)

In May 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011-B4dir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Re#l IFRSfurther converging U.S. GAAP and IFRS by providogmnmon fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements.BFA&le changes to the fair value measurement geedavhich include: 1) prohibiting
the inclusion of block discounts in all fair valmeasurements, not just Level 1 measurements, 2)@ddidance on when to include other
premiums and discounts in fair value measuremesjtgjarifying that the concepts of “highest andthgse” and “valuation premise” apply
only when measuring the fair value of non-finaneisgets and 4) adding an exception that allowsesurement of a group of financial
assets and liabilities with offsetting risks (eayportfolio of derivative contracts) at their eeposure to a particular risk if certain criteria a
met. ASU 201104 also requires additional disclosure relatedeim$ categorized as Level 3 in the fair value nidmg including a descriptic
of the processes for valuing these assets, prayiglirantitative information about the significanbbseervable inputs used to measure fair
value and, in certain cases, explaining the seitgitf the fair value measurements to changesmbgervable inputs. The Company ado
this standard in the first quarter 2012. Adoptid®8U 2011-04 increased the footnote disclosurehaat no impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860)

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-03ansfers and Servicing: Reconsideration of Effec€ontrol for Repurchase Agreements

a typical repurchase agreement transaction, aty érgnsfers financial assets to the counterpargxichange for cash with an agreement for
the counterparty to return the same or equivaleantial assets for a fixed price in the futuregioPto this update, one of the factors in
determining whether sale treatment could be usedwtreether the transferor maintained effective @mf the transferred assets and, in order
to do so, the transferor must have the abilityefmurchase such assets. In connection with theriseuzf ASU 2011-03, the FASB concluded
that the assessment of effective control shouldsam a transferor’'s contractual rights and ohigest with respect to transferred financial
assets, rather than whether the transferor hgwr#totical ability to perform in accordance with skaights or obligations. ASU 2011-03
removes the transferor’s ability criterion from sateration of effective control. The Company adadpthis standard in the first quarter

2012. As the Company records repurchase agreemestcured borrowings and not sales, this updatad significant effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Services Investment Companies (Topic 946)

In June 2013, the FASB finalized ASU 2013-08 amegdhe scope, measurement and disclosure requitemeder Topic 946 — Financial
Services-Investment Companies. The Board decidetbraddress issues related to the applicabifitpv@stment company accounting for
real estate entities and the measurement of regbaavestments at this time. Further, as statéC 946-10-15-3, the guidance in Topic
946 does not apply to real estate investment traatsthus has no effect on the Company’s condelidénancial statements.

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior interest-only, subordinated, subordinatéetest-only, and Non-Agency
RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs. The Compaley invests in Agency RMBS. Senior interestiiam-Agency RMBS are considered
to be entitled to the first principal repaymentghiair pro-rata ownership interests at the repgrtiate. The total fair value of the Négency
RMBS that are held by the re-securitization trestssolidated pursuant to ASC 810 was $3.2 billiod $3.3 billion at September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011, respectively. See Notetldesk consolidated financial statements for furdigcussion of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or npibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,
gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gzss)(telated to the Company’s available-for-saleBS\portfolio as of September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011, by asset class.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Principal or Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealize
Notional Valut  Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses Gain/(Loss]
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 13 3 - $ (56) $ 7€ % 82 $ 3 3 - $ 2
Senior intere:-only 3,120,43: 139,82 - 139,82 128,86t 8,35 (19,31) (10,959
Subordinate 1,074,56! - (597,30¢) 477,25 509,06: 50,307 (18,500 31,807
Subordinated intere-only 264,05: 17,39% - 17,39° 16,86" 1,71« (2,249 (530
RMBS transferred to consolidated
variable interest entities ("VIEs 4,795,81! 9,35¢ (2,194,89) 2,512,76! 3,235,57. 723,07: (26€) 722,80°
Agency RMBS 1,934,28 57,60¢ - 1,893,63: 1,997,21. 103,96: (38%) 103,57¢

$ 11,189,28 $ 224,18 $(2,792,26) $5,040,95 $5,887,66. $ 887,41: $ (40,709 $ 846,70t

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Principal or Total Total Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealize
Notional Valut  Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses Gain/(Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,118 $ - 3 (56) $ 1,05¢ $ 1,02C $ 2 3 41 $ (39)
Senior intere-only 3,734,45; 199,28t - 199,28t 188,67¢ 11,30¢ (21,91 (10,609
Subordinate( 1,378,89. - (724,739 654,15. 606,89! 30,99 (78,25¢) (47,257
Subordinated intere-only 277,56( 21,91( - 21,91( 22,01¢ 1,66: (1,559 10¢
RMBS transferred to consolidat
variable interest entities ("VIEs 5,265,12 19,86¢ (2,382,99) 2,902,00: 3,270,33: 420,50¢! (52,17%) 368,33(
Agency RMBS 3,018,34 90,40: (159) 3,027,28! 3,144,53. 117,60: (355) 117,24¢

$ 13,67549 $ 331,47( $(3,107,94) $6,805,69 $7,233,47 $ 582,07t $ (154,29) $ 427,78

The table below presents changes in AccretablaedY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgueto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand
Balance at beginning of peric $ 2,234,719 $ 258548 $ 2,342,46; $ 2,521,72:
Purchase - - 86,84" 91,68(
Accretion (89,25¢) (102,517 (276,696 (293,72)
Reclassification (to) from naccretable differenc (1,809 (151,279 12,77¢ 59,39°
Sales : : (21,669 (47,38()
Balance at end of peric $ 214372 % 2,33169. $ 2,143,721 $ 2,331,69:

The table below presents the outstanding prindipince and related carrying amount at the beginaird ending of the quarterly periods
ended September 30, 2012 and December 31, 201 pextains to the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS poitfalccounted for according to
the provisions of ASC 310-30.
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For the Quarter Ende
September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perio $ 4,878,47 $ 5,264,48

End of perio $ 4,690,08 $ 5,245,18
Amortized cost

Beginning of perio $ 2,420,50. $ 2,761,67.

End of periot $ 2,333,30' $ 2,649,30:

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the CompaRWIBS by length of time that such securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positi@eptember 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.edlirgies in an unrealized loss position
have been evaluated by the Company for OTTI ausgésrl in Note 2(d).

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less tt Unrealized Loss Position for 12
12 Months Months or More Total
Number Number Number
Estimated  Unrealizec of Estimated  Unrealizec of Estimated  Unrealizec of
Fair Value Losses Securitie!  FairValue Losses Securitie!  Fair Value Losses Securitie!
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - - $ - % = - $ - % = =
Senior intere-only 18,92¢ (3,049 1C 50,44¢ (16,264 2C 69,37 (19,31%) 3C
Subordinater - - 1 192,67! (18,500 17 192,67! (18,500 18
Subordinated intere-only 9,87( (2,249 1 - - - 9,87( (2,249 1
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - - 36,52° (26€) 2 36,52° (26€) 2
Agency RMBS 3,84¢ (164) 3 93t (219 1 4,78% (383) 4
Total $ 3264t $ (54560 15 $ 28058t $ (35,249 4C_$ 31323 $ (40,709 55
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position for Less tt Unrealized Loss Position for 12
12 Months Months or More Total
Number Number Number
Estimated  Unrealizec of Estimated  Unrealizec of Estimated  Unrealizec of
Fair Value Losses Securitie!  FairValue Losses Securitie:  Fair Value Losses Securitie:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % = - % 127 % (41) 1 $ 127 % (41) 1
Senior intere-only 99,35 (18,75¢) 2€ 17,64 (3,167 12 116,99¢ (21,91) 38
Subordinatet 321,44t (52,824 33 111,16 (25,430 17 432,58: (78,254 5C
Subordinated intere-only 16,30( (1,559 2 - - - 16,30( (1,559 2
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - - 594,36¢ (52,17 18 594,36¢ (52,17 18
Agency RMBS 3,88¢ (355) 2 - - - 3,88¢ (355) 2
Total $ 440,95! $ (73,489 63 $ 72331 $ (80,807 48 $1,164,26! $ (154,29¢) 111

At September 30, 2012, the Company did not intergktl any of its RMBS that were in an unrealizeskl position, and it was not more liki
than not that the Company would be required totkeBe RMBS before recovery of their amortized basis, which may be at their maturity.
With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, dbdity of any entity to cause the sale by the Hor to the maturity of these RMBS is
either expressly prohibited, not probable, ornsitiéd to specified events of default, none of whielve occurred to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency MBre $383 thousand and $355 thousand at Sept@&db2012 and December 31,
2011, respectively. Given the credit quality inletri@ Agency RMBS, the Company does not considgradithe current impairments on its
Agency RMBS to be credit related. In evaluatingettter it is more likely than not that it will bequired to sell any impaired security before
its anticipated recovery, which may be at theirurigit, the Company considers the significance @heéavestment, the amount of impairmi
the projected future performance of such impaiesmigties, as well as the Company’s current anitigated leverage capacity and liquidity
position. Based on these analyses, the Companyntietd that at September 30, 2012 and Decembe&2(31l, unrealized losses on its
Agency RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (including Non-Agency RMBS held by consoligdtVIEs) were $40.3 million
and $153.9 million at September 30, 2012 and Deeeb, 2011, respectively. Based upon the moshtenaluation, the Company does
consider these unrealized losses to be indicafi@Td | and does not believe that these unrealinedds are credit related, but rather are due
to other factors. The Company has reviewed its Ngancy RMBS that are in an unrealized loss positiidentify those securities with
losses that are other-thtamporary based on an assessment of changes ifl@astexpected to be collected for such RMBS, Wwhionsider
recent bond performance and expected future pedioceof the underlying collater:



A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters and nine months ended September 30, 201 3eptember 30, 2011 is presented
below.
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For the Quarter Ende
September 3 September 3

201z 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment lossi $ (2,719 $ (78,950
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (7,300 (71,610
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (10,019 $ (150,56()

For the Nine Months Ende
September 3 September 3

201z 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (47,269 $ (161,929
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (76,807 (83,989
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (124,06H) $ (245,91))

The following table presents a roll forward of tredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a portion «
loss was previously recognized in other comprelvenisicome. The table delineates between thoseisesuhat are recognizing OTTI for
the first time as opposed to those that have puslWiaecognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
September 3 September 3

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 540,65¢ $ 242,64¢
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 7,27¢ 107,55:
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (33,819 (36)
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsen securities with previously recognized
otherthar-temporary impairmenti 2,73¢ 43,00"
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdzbtoollected that are recognized over the
remaining life of the securit (8,160 (44,817
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 508,69t $ 348,35t
For the Nine Months Ende
September 3 September 3
201z 2011
(dollars in thousands
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 452,06( $ 237,74¢
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 97,20: 185,37!
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (34,109 (1,299
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsen securities with previously recognized
otherthar-temporary impairment 26,86 60,53¢
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectditoollected over the remaining life of the
securities (33,327 (134,009
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 508,69t $ 348,35t

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs usechéasure the component of OTTI recognized in agenfor the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:
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For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2012 2011

Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 56% 63%

Range 41%- 80% 42%- 71%
60+ days delinquet

Weighted Averag: 23% 30%

Range 0%- 41% 0% - 68%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 13% 17%

Range 0%- 73% 0% - 89%
3 Month CPR

Weighted Averag: 16% 16%

Range 0% - 20% 3%- 63%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 17% 17%

Range 12%- 42% 6% - 38%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemahetReREMIC and underlyin
from each of their respective capital structu

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at September 30, 2012 and Dec&hp2011. Interest-only RMBS
included in the tables below represent the rightteive a specified proportion of the contractotdrest cash flows of the underlying
principal balance of specific securities. At Sepber 30, 2012, interest-only RMBS had a net urzedlioss of $5.7 million and had an
amortized cost of $172.0 million. At December 3012, interest-only RMBS had a net unrealized Ids§567 million and had an amortized
cost of $237.8 million. The fair value of 10s agember 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $&@bi&n, and $232.2 million,
respectively.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included in  Gross Unrealize Loss Included in  Gross Unrealize
Accumulated Other  Gain Included Total Gross Accumulated Other  Loss Included Total Gross
Comprehensive in Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive in Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 3 % - $ 3 % - $ - $ -
Senior interest-only - 8,35: 8,35 - (29,31) (29,319
Subordinate 50,30° - 50,30° (18,500) - (18,500
Subordinated intere only - 1,71« 1,71¢ 0) (2,249 (2,244
RMBS transferred iconsolidated VIE: 716,87! 6,197 723,07: (266) - (26€)
Agency RMBS 103,93t 23 103,96: (0) (383) (383)
Total $ 871,12: $ 16,287 $ 887,41, $ (18,766 $ (21,939 $ (40,70%)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included in  Gross Unrealize Loss Included in  Gross Unrealize
Accumulated Other Gain Included in Total Gross Accumulated Other Loss Included in  Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 2 % - % 2 % 41y $ - % (41
Senior intere-only - 11,30¢ 11,30¢ - (21,91)) (21,91
Subordinate 30,99° - 30,99° (78,25¢) - (78,25¢)
Subordinated intere only - 1,66: 1,66: - (1,559 (1,559
RMBS transferred iconsolidated VIE: 415,68 4,817 420,50! (52,17%) - (52,17%)
Agency RMBS 117,23! 36E 117,60: - (355) (355)
Total $ 563,92. $ 18,15: $ 582,07t $ (130,470 $ (23,820 $ (154,296

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfleass expected to be collected, among other iteares affected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portflioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgleating each investment’s risk profile.
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The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at September 30, 2012 and Ddoen31, 2011.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Principal or Weighted
Principal or Weighted Notional Average
Notional Value Weightec Weightec Average Value at  Weightec Yield
at Period-End Average Average Weighted Yield Period-End Average  Weighted Weighted at Period-
(dollars in  Amortizec Fair Average atPeriodeEnd (dollarsin Amortizec  Average Average End
thousands Cost Basi  Value Coupon (1) thousands Cost Basi  Fair Value  Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 13t $ 58.371 $ 60.8¢ 0.0(% 11.2¢% $ 1,11t $ 951t $ 91.5¢ 1.02% 2.95%
Senior, interest onl $ 3,120,43 $ 4.4¢ $ 4.1: 1.7/% 8.81% $ 3,734,45. $ 534 % 5.0t 1.9€% 13.28%
Subordinate: $ 1,07456 $ 44.41$ 47.31 3.11% 108% $ 1,378,89. $ 474 % 44.01 3.4%% 9.51%
Subordinated, intereonly $ 264,05; $ 6.5¢ $ 6.3¢ 2.45% 596 $  277,56( $ 7.8¢ $ 7.9t 2.9% 9.9%
RMBS transferred tconsolidatec
variableinterestentities $ 479581 $ 53.4¢ $ 68.8i 4.9¢% 154406 $ 5,265,120 $ 55.1¢ $ 62.1] 5.32% 14.5%
Agency Mortgag-BackedSecurities  $ 1,934,28: $ 103.1¢ $ 108.7¢ 4.65% 3.61% $ 3,01834 $ 103.00 $ 107.0¢ 4.6% 3.8%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availabfehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at September 30, 2012 and December 31120

September 30, 20 December 31, 20:

AAA 0.0(% 0.52%
AA 0.46% 0.14%
A 0.0%% 0.45%
BBB 0.0(% 1.54%
BB 0.36% 0.0(%
B 1.44% 0.4%%
Below B or not ratel 97.71% 96.91%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtliae stated contractual maturities. Actual mérsiof the Compang’' RMBS are affecte
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtwiacipal. The following tables
provide a summary of the fair value and amortizest of the Company’s RMBS at September 30, 2012Dswmber 31, 2011 according to
their estimated weighted-average life classifigaioThe weighted-average lives of the RMBS intéiides below are based on lifetime
expected prepayment rates using an industry prepatymodel for the Agency RMBS portfolio and the Quamy’s prepayment assumptions
for the Non-Agency RMBS. The prepayment model a@ars current yield, forward yield, steepness efititerest rate curve, current
mortgage rates, mortgage rates of the outstandarg loan age, margin, and volatility.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than or
year and less  Greater than fiv

Less than one than years and less  Greater than te
year five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - $ - $ 82 % - $ 82
Senior intere-only 57C 63,87¢ 53,32« 11,09¢ 128,86¢
Subordinate 521 67,39° 305,43t 135,70° 509,06:
Subordinated inter-only - - - 16,861 16,861
RMBS transferred to consolidate
VIEs 15,02¢ 320,80( 2,143,28 756,46¢ 3,235,57.
Agency RMBE 224 1,996,98 - - 1,997,21.
Total fair value $ 16,34: $ 2,449,060 $ 2,502,12. $ 920,13t $ 5,887,66.
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - $ - $ 79 $ - $ 79
Senior intere-only 79¢ 77,297 53,08¢ 8,64 139,82°
Subordinate 357 64,83: 293,47 118,59: 477,25¢
Subordinated inter-only - - - 17,391 17,397
RMBS transferred to consolidate
VIEs 14,22¢ 247,32 1,650,82! 600,38t 2,512,76!
Agency RMBS 20z 1,893,43. - - 1,893,63.
Total amortized cos $ 15,58t $ 2,282,88: $ 1,997,461 $ 745,02t $ 5,040,95!
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than or  Greater than fiv
year and less
Less than one than years and less  Greater than te
year five years than ten year years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 89z $ - $ 126 $ - % 1,02(
Senior intere-only - 85,63: 69,20« 33,84: 188,67¢
Subordinate 6,53( 101,98: 259,54¢ 238,83: 606,89!
Subordinated inter-only - - 1,812 20,20 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidate
VIEs 25,37t 338,61t 2,119,083 787,31: 3,270,33.
Agency RMBE 17,93: 1,735,101 824,64! 566,84¢ 3,144,53.
Total fair value $ 50,72¢ $ 2,261,33' $ 3,274,36: $ 1,647,040 $ 7,233,47!
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 891 $ - $ 166 $ - $ 1,05¢
Senior intere-only - 95,97 69,95 33,36! 199,28t
Subordinate 5,61¢€ 98,651 300,48¢ 249,39( 654,15:
Subordinated interonly - - 1,94¢ 19,96¢ 21,91
RMBS transferred to consolidate
VIEs 32,80¢ 296,14« 1,827,00! 746,05: 2,902,00:
Agency RMBE 17,61( 1,663,91 798,63: 547,12t 3,027,28!
Total amortized cos $ 56,92 $ 2,154,69. $ 2,998,18! $ 1,595,89. $ 6,805,69!

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdxy what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinféhé behavior of the collateral when the
Company purchased the security more typically rédesnAli-A. The Company defines /A collateral characteristics to be evidenced by



60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool being girethizn 5% and the weighted average FICO scordwedinhe of origination as greater than
650. At September 30, 2012, 99.6% of the Non-AgéRWIBS collateral was Alt-A. At December 31, 209%,4% of the Non-Agency

RMBS collateral was Alt-A.
The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallog collateral characteristics at September 30228hd December 31, 2011.
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September 30,

December 31,

2012 2011
Weighted average maturity (yea 24.¢ 2517
Weighted average amortized loan to value 71.€% 71.5%
Weighted average FICO ( 7173 718.¢
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $453.1 $469.(
Weighted average percentage owner occu 85.1% 85.2%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 65.5% 65.€%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 3.1% 4.5%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 37.1% CA 38.1%
FL 8.€% FL 8.5%
NY 6.2% NY  6.1%
VA 2.6% NJ  2.7%
NJ  2.5% VA 2.4%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at September
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
December 31, 20:

Origination Yeal September 30, 20

2001 0.2% 0.2%
2003 0.4% 0.%
2004 0.£% 1.2%
2005 13.&% 13.&%
2006 32.2% 31.8%
2007 49.% 48.1%
2008 3.C% 3.2%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, tmep@ny sold RMBS with a carrying value of $795.1liwl for realized gains of $69.2
million. During the quarter ended September 3@, 126he Company sold RMBS with a carrying valu&®f3 million for realized gains of
$58 thousand. During the nine months ended Septedih012, the Company sold RMBS with a carryiafue of $858.2 million for
realized gains of $85.2 million. During the ninemttts ended September 30, 2011, the Company soldSRM a carrying value of $669.1
million for realized gains of $1.8 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagjiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizwbole mortgage loans. Refer to Note
8 for additional details regarding the Companyiginement with VIES.

The following table provides a summary of the chemnim the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011:

September 3 December 3.
201z 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 256,63 $ 349,11
Purchase 1,185,66. -
Principal paydown (297,92) (85,52¢)
Net periodic amortization (accretio (7,846 (1,669
Change to loan loss provisi 39€ (5,297
Balance, end of peric $ 1,136,92. $ 256,63:

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as falthvestment at September 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011:

September 3

201z

December 3:
2011

Securitized loans, at amortized ¢

$

(dollars in thousand:

1,148,18

$

270,57(



Less: allowance for loan loss 11,26¢ 13,93¢
Securitized loans held for investme $ 1,136,992 $ 256,63

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizedfmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 9.8% were originated during 2012,
59.8% were originated during 2011, 13.2% during®@@hd the remaining 17.2% of the loans were oaigith prior to 2010. A summary of
key characteristics of these loans follows.
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September 30, 20. December 31, 201

Number of loan:

Weighted average maturity (yea
Weighted average loan to value
Weighted average FICO (

Weighted average loan balance (in
thousands

Weighted average percentage owner
occupied

Weighted average percentage single fam
residence

Weighted average geographic concentrat
of top five state:

1,38¢

28.2
71.1%

767

$ 820.1
94.(%
65.%
CA 39.%
NY 7.7%
WA 6.€%

VA 4.7%
MD 4.2%

392
25.¢
75.5%

752

$ 684.(
91.1%
58.1%
CA 36.(%
FL 6.1%
AZ 5.8%

NJ 5.4%
IL 5.3%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the codlase the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggan portfolio for the nine months

ended September 30, 2012 and year ended Decemkiz0 131

For the Nine For the Year
Months Ended
Ended September December 31,
30, 2012 2011
(dollars in thousands
Balance, beginning of peric $ 13,93¢ 11,00¢
Provision for loan losse (396 5,291
Charge-offs (2,27¢) (2,359
Balance, end of peric $ 11,26¢ 13,93¢

The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is compafsadieneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relatebeaeneral reserve at September 30, 2012 anchibere31, 2011 was $4.7 million and $
million, respectively. The balance in the allowarfior loan losses related to the specific reserBeatember 30, 2012 and December 31,

2011 was $6.6 million and $7.6 million, respectyel

The Company’s overall provision for loan lossedascribed in Note 2(g). The Company’s generalrvesis based on historical loss rates for
pools of loans with similar credit characteristiadjusted for current trends and market conditior@uding current trends in delinquencies
and severities. The Company has established #ispgeserve that reflects consideration of loar@ethan 60 days delinquent, loans in
foreclosure, borrowers that have declared bankyypitd real estate owned. The loan loss provisitated to these loans is measured as the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadstimated fair value of the property secutirgmortgage, less estimated costs to
sell. The specific reserve also reflects constitaraf concessions granted to borrowers by theicerin the form of modifications (i.e.,
reductions). Loan loss provisions related to thaeedifications are based on the contractual pradaimd interest payments, post-

modification, discounted at the loan’s originaleefive interest rate.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired & which the Company established a specificrieseas $28.3 million and $32.9 million
at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, tesgec The Company’s recorded investment in im@diloans for which there is a
related allowance for credit losses at SeptembgP@D2 and December 31, 2011 was $21.2 million$dzti3 million, respectively. The total
unpaid principal balance of non-impaired loansvibich the Company established a general reservestvdshillion and $235.2 million at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctiVhe Company’s recorded investment in loaas éine not impaired for which there
is a related general reserve for credit lossegptenber 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $lidhkzind $228.9 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the outstanding @pal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greest reported by the servicer at

September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
September 30, 201 $ 2,37 $ 2,00¢ $  3,99¢ $ 0 4,03( $ 1,76¢ $ 14,17
December 31, 201 $ 1,347 $ 1,82¢ $ 2,33t $  1,65¢ 3,62¢€ $ 5,201 $ 15,99
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With the exception of its ability to approve loamwdifications solely as it relates to CSMC 2012-Cltid CSMC 2012-CIM2 as further
described in Note 2(g), the Company does not semienodify loans held for investment. The trusted servicer of the respective
securitization are responsible for servicing andlifiying these loans. The Company is required t&emaertain assumptions in accounting
loans held for investment due to the limitatiorirdbrmation available to the Company. The follogitable presents the loans that were
modified by the servicer during the nine monthsesh8eptember 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.

Amortized Cost o Amortized Cost o
Unpaid Principal Unpaid Principal Modified Loans For Modified Loans For
Number of Loan Balance Balance Which Which
Modified During of Modified Loans of Modified Loans Amortized Cost o There is an Allowance fc There is No Allowance ft
Period (Pre-modification) (Pos-maodification) Modified Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:
(dollars in thousand:
Nine Months Ende
September 30, 20: 7 $ 3,947 $ 4,05% $ 4,02¢ $ 4,02¢ $ 0
September 30, 202 6 $ 4,445 $ 4,821 $ 4,87¢ $ 4,87¢ $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodsd iitigation. Based on the information availatleing the quarter and nine months
ended September 30, 2012, the Company determiagdlthoans modified by the servicer were consddroubled debt restructurings, as
defined under GAAP. A troubled debt restructuriegénerally any modification of a loan to a borrotimat is experiencing financial
difficulties, where a lender agrees to terms thatraore favorable to the borrower than are otheraisilable in the current market. All loan
modifications during the quarters and nine montided September 30, 2012 and September 30, 201Mé&tth reduction of the stated
interest rates.Loans modified by the servicer have been indivijuatsessed for impairment and measurement of impat is based on the
excess of the recorded investment in the loan theepresent value of the expected cash flows, mposiification, discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate at inception. In the alogeof additional loan modifications by the servirefuture periods that are considered to be
TDR’s, the $4.5 million specific reserve relatedi@R’s as of September 30, 2012 will be recognineget income in future periods by way
of a decrease in the provision for loan losses.

As of September 30, 2012, one loan with an outstgnprincipal balance of approximately $1.6 millittat was modified in the past twelve
months was delinquent on its scheduled paymerntss |dan was individually evaluated for impairmand the related allowance for loan |
is based on the excess of the recorded investmen¢iloan over the present value of the expedst flows, post modification, discountec
the loan’s effective interest rate at inception.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instruntenThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of iguts to the valuation technique, into a thraesldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liadd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs usecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on the consdéthstatements of financial condition or disclosethe related notes are categorized based on
the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Leak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
and such changes could result in a significaneiase or decrease in the fair value. For the Comgamyestments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hiefay, the significant unobservable inputs include discount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiesifitignt increases (decreases) in any of the disttaies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower @fier) fair value measurement. The impact of chaigpsepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on tbaiserity of the investment. Generally, a changthindefault assumption is accompanied by
directionally similar changes in the assumptiorsdu®r the loss severity and the prepayment speed.
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Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are ateopks markets and products

evolve and the pricing for certain products becomese transparent, the Company will continue tieefts valuation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is unchanged. The methods used toqeadfair value calculation may not

be indicative of net realizable value or reflectofduture fair values. Furthermore, while the C@np believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market pggits, the use of different methodologies, or agxions, to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in deatiént estimate of fair value at the reporting datee Company uses inputs that are current as
of the measurement date, which may include perddsarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existotigervability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS. If third ply pricing services are unable to provide a pfarean asset, or if the price provided by
them is deemed unreliable by the Company, theagket will be valued at its fair value as determhibg the Company without validation to
third-party pricing. In addition, validating thigghrty pricing for the Companyinvestments may be more subjective as fewerggzatits ma
be willing to provide this service to the Companliquid investments typically experience gregbeice volatility as an active market does
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can vsignificantly from period to period and may causgruments to change classifications
within the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finan@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, aeduad interest payable are considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value due totlibd erm nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors
as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagedlfateral composition, borrower characteristegyected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonkpgoted losses, expected default severity, cratiaecement, and other pertinent factors.
Management reviews the fair values generated bynthael to determine whether prices are reflectivihe current market. Management
indirectly corroborates its estimates of the failue using pricing models by comparing its restdtsidependent prices provided by dealers in
the securities and/or third party pricing servic€ertain very liquid asset classes, such as Agéxregl-rate pass-throughs may be priced
using independent sources such as quoted pric8ofBe-Announced (“TBA”) securities.

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sigffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing hasie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thmigarity of the Company’s securities
to those actively traded enable the Company torebsguoted prices in the market and utilize thaseep as a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfidds&gency RMBS as Level 2 inputs in the fair v@hierarchy.

The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Maency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted @sithat are observed in the market.
The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default avdrity curves all involve Management judgment assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Non-Agency fair valstreates Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy.
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Interest Rate Sway

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Camypaompares the dealer quotations
received to its own estimate of fair value to eatdufor reasonableness. The dealer quotes inagoommon market pricing methods,
including a spread measurement to the Treasurg giglve or interest rate swap curve as well asnlyidg characteristics of the particular
contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by tmep@ay by incorporating such factors as the termaturity, Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,
and the payment rates on the fixed portion of tiberest rate swaps. The Company has classifietebitRate Swaps as Level 2 inputs in the
fair value hierarchy.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ¢jaahits discount rate assumption used to deterthméair value of interest rate swaps
from LIBOR to the overnight index swap rate in @sge to changes in market valuation practicestterést rate swaps that are collaterali

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg evel in the fair value hierarchy, at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is pezsbatow.

September 30, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - 9 - 9 82
Senior intere-only - - 128,86¢
Subordinatet - - 509,06:
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,86
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,235,57.
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,997,21 -
Liabilities:

Interest rate sway - 59,07: -
Total $ - $ 2056,28 $ 3,890,45!
December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 1,02(
Senior intere-only - - 188,67
Subordinatet - - 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only - - 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,270,33;
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 3,144,53. -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 44,467 -
Total $ - $ 3,18899 $ 4,088,94!
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The table below provides a summary of the chanyésa fair value of securities classified as Le&zel

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:

For the Nine Months
Ended For the Year Ende

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Non-Agency RMBS
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 4,088,94! $ 5,529,10!
Transfers in to Level 3 ass - -
Transfers out of Level 3 ass - -
Purchase 116,62 446,20

Principal payment (404,29 (695,27)

Sales (328,26 (631,64

Accretion of purchase discoul 69,53: 81,22
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (124,065 (357,109

Realized gains (losses) on si 48,43¢ 44~

Net unrealized gains (losses) on intonly RMBS 393 (14,717
Gains (losses) included in other comprehenisiveme

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 423,13 (269,299

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,890,451 $ 4,088,94!

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 durimg quarter ended September 30, 2012 and the ydad &ecember 31, 2011.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of Septen8fgr2012 and December 31, 2011
follows:

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Prepayment Cumulative Loss Average Prepayment Cumulative Loss
Discount Speed (CPF Default Rate Severity Discount Speed (CPF Default Rate Severity
Rate Rate
Range Range
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior 10.(%  12%- 12% 0%- 4% 50%- 54% 4.3% 1%- 12% 0%- 1% 50%- 8%
Senior intere-only 14.1% 1%- 2C% 0%- 26% 50%- 8% 14.% 1%- 22% 0%- 24% 50%- 8%
Subordinate: 23. 1% 1%- 18% 0%- 26% 50%- 85% 28.5% 1%- 2C% 0%- 25% 50%- 8%
Subordinated intere-only 13.1% 4%- 1% 0%- 18% 50%- 71% 13.5% 3%- 9% 0%- 21% 50%- 8C%
RMBS transferred tconsolidated VIE: 6.7% 1%- 14% 0%- 3€% 50%- 85% 9.1% 1%-13% 0% - 35% 50%- 85%

All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysviedge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect @mmpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futash flows for each respective secu

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raoiggbservable prices on securities bac
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to pay offagh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral Fo©f sloan-to-value ratio, debt-toeome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisisusdalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifiegyment experience as obtained from remittancatsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
real estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loaterthine the first 30 months of the default cuBeyond month 30, the default curve
transitions to a value that is reflective of a portof the current delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collatesjpécific experience with consideration given toec
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considergicause severities tend to initially increase
on newly originated securities, before beginningdacline as the collateral ages and eventuallyilete® Collateral characteristics such as
loan size, loan-to-value, and geographic locatiobcodateral also effect loss severity.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstment at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuless unaccreted discounts and
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimateséair value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactersstif the borrower, purpose of the loan, use otthilateral securing the loan, and
management’s expectations of general economic tonsdliin the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquir@gtment securities. Due to the short
term nature of these financial instruments, the gamy estimates and records the fair value of theserchase agreements using the
contractual obligation plus accrued interest payallmaturity.

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred tesGladated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compasecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings pursa#®&C 860. The Company carries securitized debie principal balance outstanding
plus unamortized premiums, less unaccreted dissoenbrded in connection with the financing of ltheins or RMBS with third parties. The
premiums or discounts associated with the finanointfpe notes or certificates are amortized overdbntractual life of the instrument using
the interest method. The Company estimates th@dhie of securitized debt by estimating the fatcash flows associated with the
underlying assets collateralizing the secured datstanding. The Company models the fair valueach underlying asset by considering,
among other items, the structure of the underlgecurity, coupon, servicer, actual and expectedulksf actual and expected default
severities, reset indices, and prepayment speadmijanction with market research for similar ctdlal performance and management’s
expectations of general economic conditions instixetor and other economic factors.

The following table presents the carrying value tidvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments at September 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Level in

Fair Value Carrying Carrying

Hierarchy Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS 3 $ 3,890,451 $ 3,890,45( $ 4,088,94 $ 4,088,94!
Agency RMBS 2 1,997,21. 1,997,21. 3,144,53. 3,144,53.
Securitized loans held for investm 3 1,136,92: 1,153,76. 256,63: 237,97
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (1,658,90i) (1,662,65) (2,672,98) (2,677,40)
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency
RMBS 3 (1,252,75) (1,319,37) (1,630,27)) (1,546,23)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held fc
investment 3 (1,033,92) (1,046,11) (212,779 (222,92))
Interest rate sway 2 (59,077) (59,077) (44,467 (44,467

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.7 billion and $2lioh of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefzorrowing rates of 0.48% and
0.35% and weighted average remaining maturitie®alays and 48 days as of September 30, 2012 arehiber 31, 2011, respectively. At
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Agend®RMedged as collateral under these repurchasemgnts had an estimated fair
value of $1.7 billion and $2.8 billion, respectiyelThe average daily balances of the Company’sraase agreements for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 and year ended Deceml#d Bl were $2.3 billion and $3.8 billion, respeely. The interest rates of these
repurchase agreements are generally indexed tntaenonth or the three-month LIBOR rate and reepaiccordingly.
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At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, theckase agreements collateralized by Agency RV&Sthe following remaining
maturities.

September 3 December 3:
201z 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 3543 $ =
1-29 days 1,130,03 1,368,94
30 to 59 day: 144,59! 836,00
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 35,47¢ 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 313,36¢ 296,20:
Total $ 1,658,900 § 2,672,98

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thep@oy did not have an amount at risk under itsnease agreements greater than
of its equity with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as secudlritzes held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS $farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recourstitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.

At September 30, 2012 the Compangecuritized debt collateralized by residentiattgee loans had a principal balance of $1.0 lillid he
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042 eefber 30, 2012 the debt carried a weighted geearast of financing equal to

3.63%. At December 31, 2011, the Company'’s sezedtdebt collateralized by residential mortgagmtohad a principal balance of $222.9
million. At December 31, 2011, the debt carriesledghted average cost of financing equal to 5.48%.

At September 30, 2012 the Company’s securitized ci@lateralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principalance of $1.3 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Septedd, 2012 the debt carried a weighted averagieoddinancing equal to 4.96%. At
December 31, 2011, the Company'’s securitized dalzteralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principabioae of $1.7 billion. At
December 31, 2011, the debt carried a weightedchgeerost of financing equal to 5.09%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is base@tamortized cost, net of premiums or discounistee to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estichaténcipal repayment schedule of the securitizelok dit September 30, 2012 and December
31, 2011, based on expected cash flows of theeetad mortgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted forqmted losses on the underlying collat

of the debt. All of the securitized debt recordethe Company’s Consolidated Statements of Firmi@bndition is non-recourse to the
Company.

September 3 December 3:

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Within One Yeal $ 640,02¢ $ 488,88t
One to Three Yeal 737,93! 598,92:
Three to Five Year 388,35 276,96}
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 454,84 404,38t
Total $ 2,221,161 $ 1,769,15:

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt arpeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&es 3 and 4 for a more detailed discussiohe&ecurities and loans collateralizing
securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$Te purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laam®-securitizing RMBS and obtaini
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determirieiff the primary beneficiary.
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Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fibr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially ablandlinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be figant to the VIE. In addition, the Company isnstdered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly ingtdahe VIES' economic performance (“power”) or fiempany was determined to have
power in connection with its involvement with therpose and design of the VIE. Two trusts formeadrgo January 1, 2010 that were
evaluated by the Company did not meet the requingsifer consolidation due to the Company’s inapiit control certain activities of the
VIEs.

As of September 30, 2012, the Company’s consolillstatement of financial condition includes ninesdidated VIE's with $4.4 billion of
assets and $2.3 billion of liabilities.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedranCompany’s statement of financial
condition, is restricted by the structural provisf these entities, and a recovery of the Companyestment in the vehicles will be limited
by each entity’s distribution provisions. The liéti®#s of the securitization vehicles, which arematonsolidated on the Company’s statement
of financial condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from esduritization vehicle’s respective asset
pool.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor hasavided, any financial support to these constdéidaecuritization vehicles.
VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whibhe Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The restuttomsolidation at September 30, 2012 is
the inclusion of $3.2 billion of No&gency RMBS at fair value representing the undadysecurities of the trusts, the inclusion of $dillion

of securitized loans held for investment, the rexdtgon of $1.3 billion of securitized debt assoemiwvith Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $1.0 billion of securitizezbtlassociated with loans held for investmentdditéon, at September 30, 2012 the
Company recognized $25.2 million and $8.5 millidraccrued interest receivable and accrued intp@asble, respectively, of the
securitizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through entité#égseceive principal and interest on the undag\dollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by tharg&ation entities are restricted in that they only be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintiteo its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea Io® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidgth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of RMBS and jumbo, prime, residential gage loans. See Notes 3 and 4 for a
discussion of the characteristics of the securéies loans in the Company’s portfolio.

The table below reflects the assets and liabiltse®rded in the consolidated statements of firrdmeindition related to the consolidated VIESs
as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Nor-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 3,235,57. $ 3,270,33:
Securitized loans held for investmu 1,136,92. 256,63.
Accrued interest receivak 25,21t 26,61¢
Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS $ 1,252,75. $ 1,630,27
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldrigestmen 1,033,92! 212,77¢
Accrued interest payab 8,47 8,13(
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Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tmtidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StatémehOperations and
Comprehensive Income is presented in the tableabelo
For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 108,12( $ 116,80!
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (32,079 (29,649
Net interest incom $ 76,04 $ 87,16
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (247) (36,089
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (3,032 (100,70)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (3,279 $ (136,789

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30  September 30

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 315,96. $ 339,76!
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (85,604 (95,009
Net interest incom $ 230,35¢ $ 244,76
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (7,510 $ (62,970)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceiine (loss (76,162) (112,98
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (83,674 $ (175,959

The amounts recorded on the consolidated stateroeéngsh flows related to consolidated VIEs is prgsd in the table below for the periods
presented.

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,

2012 2011
(dollars in thousands

Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,21t 38€
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetmipremiums, ne 4,352 2,94¢
Principal payments, N-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 130,86 156,18
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for streent 183,77" 16,94¢
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colédized by loans held fc

investmen 11,62¢ -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaitadlby loans held for

investmen (182,07 (15,899
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaterdlby Non-Agency

RMBS (122,49 (153,979
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 927 (1,689
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (1,080 (867)
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv $ 27,11¢ $ 4,03¢€

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30  September 30
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Amortization of deferred financing cos $ 6,48( $ 1,294
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetaipremiums, ne 3,46¢ 9,45
Payment of deferred financing co (8,079 -
Principal payments, N-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 394,64 541,34¢
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for gtreent 297,92: 65,34
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colédied by loans held fc

investmen 1,113,15 -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatardlby loans held for

investmen (292,56) (61,059
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colédised by Non-Agency

RMBS - 311,01.

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaiardlby No-Agency



RMBS (380,43)) (520,73()

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 1,401 (3,599
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa 347 (1,247
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv $ 1,136,34. $ 341,83t

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy
The Company has interests in the following VIEsddition to the RMBS described in Note 3.
The Company'’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities

issued by the trusts, similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that do not provide the Company wittoatrolling financial interest. The

Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not inotiber-than-temporary impairments or other writevds that the Company previously
recognized through earnings.

29




The table below represents the carrying amountsEdification of assets recorded on the Comparyrsolidated financial statements
related to its variable interests in non-consolda¥IEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss @sult of its involvement with these
VIEs, which is represented by the fair value of @@mmpany’s investments in the trusts.

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 79 % 82 $ 16 $ 127
Senior intere-only - 17¢ 12¢ 26€
Subordinatet 894 2,70¢ 4,651 4,85¢
Agency RMBS 1,35¢ 1,14¢ 1,89( 2,27¢
Total $ 2,32¢  $ 4,11t $ 6,837 $ 7,52¢

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company'’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk
by entering into derivative financial instrumennt@cts in the form of interest rate swaps. Then@any’s swaps are used to lock in a fixed
rate related to a portion of its current and aptitéd payments on its repurchase agreements. Thedy typically agrees to pay a fixed rate
of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightreceive a floating rate of interest (“receiviefpover a specified period of time. These
derivative financial instrument contracts are nesignated as hedges under ASC &&jvatives and Hedging The use of interest rate
swaps creates exposure to credit risk relatingptergial losses that could be recognized if thentenparties to these instruments fail to
perform their obligations under the contractsthi@ event of a default by the counterparty, the gamy could have difficulty obtaining its
RMBS pledged as collateral for swaps. The Compmamiodically monitors the credit of its counterp@stto determine if it is exposed to
counterparty credit risk. See Note 13 for furthiscdssion.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial Conditiol
of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Location on Consolidate Value of Agency
Statement of Financial Net Estimated Fair RMBS Pledged as
Condition Notional Amount  Value/Carrying Value Collateral
(dollars in thousand:
September 30,
2012 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (59,079 $ 62,73¢
December 31,
2011 Liabilities $ 950,000 $ (44,467 $ 46,64

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income is presented below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of Operatiot
Comprehensive Inconr

Net Unrealized Gains Net Realized Gains
(Losses) (Losses)
on Interest Rate Swa| on Interest Rate Swa|

(dollars in thousand:
For the Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 $ 4,427 $ (5,29¢)
September 30, 201 $ (25,31) $ (4,500
For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, 201 $ (14,60 $ (14,890
September 30, 201 $ (34,98) $ (11,644)

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’sesstteate swaps at September 30, 2012 was 1.81%aneeighted average receive rate
was 0.22%. The weighted average pay rate on thep@oy’s interest rate swaps at December 31, 20512vi8% and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.29%.
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The following table summarizes the notional amowamd unrealized gains (losses) of interest ratgawwatracts on a gross basis, amounts
offset in accordance with netting arrangementsraichmounts as presented in the Consolidated Stateraf Financial Condition as of
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

September 30, 201

Interest Rate Swaj- Asset Interest Rate Swaj- Liability
Notional Unrealized Gain Notional Unrealized Losse
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amount: $ -3 - % 1,355,000 $ 59,07¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amountt $ - $ - % 1,355,000 $ 59,07:
December 31, 201
Interest Rate Swaj- Asset Interest Rate Swaj- Liability
Notional Unrealized Gain Notional Unrealized Losse
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amountt $ - $ - % 950,00( $ 44,467
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amount: $ -3 - $ 950,000 $ 44,467

All of the Company’s derivative contracts are sgbje International Swaps and Derivatives AssosiaiMaster Agreements (“ISDA”) which
contain provisions that grant counterparties centigihts with respect to the applicable ISDA uplea@ dccurrence of (i) negative performance
that results in a decline in net assets in excespexified thresholds or dollar amounts over seitggls of time, (ii) the Company’s failure to
maintain its REIT status, (iii) the Company’s fadito comply with limits on the amount of leveragad (iv) the Company’s stock being
delisted from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)ob the occurrence of items (i) through (iv), teemterparty to the applicable ISDA
has a right to terminate the ISDA in accordancé wé provisions. The aggregate fair value of allightive instruments with credit-risk-
related contingent features that are in a netlifglosition at September 30, 2012 is approxima$&9.1 million including accrued interest,
which represents the maximum amount the Companydamirequired to pay upon termination, which iyfaollateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, aslés agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its constozk in ordinary brokers’
transactions at market prices or other transacasregreed between the Company and UBS. The Cgndidinot sell any shares of its
common stock under the equity distribution agredrdaning the quarter and nine months ended Septe&ih@012 or September 30,

2011. As aresult of the Company’s delay in filit)ySEC reports by the filing date required by #t€C (including the grace period permitted
by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchange Ad98#, as amended), the Company will not be abisstee shares of its common stock
under the equity distribution agreement until filgnwith the SEC have been timely made for a fudirye

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSFRe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportutdtautomatically reinvest all or a portion of itheash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of the Company’s comstook as well as to make optional cash paymermsiichase shares of its common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsdhase the Company’s common stock under the plangh optional cash

payments. The DRSPP is administered by the Adiniits, Computershare. The DRSPP was suspendatgdhe quarter ended March 31,
2012 when the Company was no longer current ffilitgs with the SEC. During the nine months en&sgptember 30, 2012 the Company
raised $117 thousand by issuing 39,000 sharesghrtinie DRSPP. During the nine months ended Séyete80, 2011 the Company raised
$786 thousand by issuing 214,000 shares througbR®&PP. As a result of the Company’s delay indilits SEC reports by the filing date
required by the SEC (including the grace periodnited by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchahgeof 1934, as amended), the
Company will not be able to issue shares undeDREPP until filings with the SEC have been timelgda for a full year.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 thep@oyndeclared dividends to common shareholderbrigtf92.4 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the quarter ended September 30, 208 Company declared dividends to common shadem®totaling $133.4 million, or
$0.13 per share.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 dmepany declared dividends to common sharehotd&abng $297.8 million, or $0.29
per share. During the nine months ended Septe@ihet011, the Company declared dividends to comshaneholders totaling $410.5
million, or $0.40 per share.

Earnings per share for the quarters and nine mamttisd September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2&pEatively, is computed as follows:

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 128,06¢ $ (60,03¢)
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 128,06¢ $ (60,03¢)

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,026,841,08 1,026,404,03
Effect of dilutive securities 663,94« 791,37
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,505,03 1,027,195,40
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Basic $ 0.1z $ (0.0€)
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.1z $ (0.06)

For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 249,08. $ 94,58:
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 249,08. $ 94,58

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,026,804,42 1,026,308,07
Effect of dilutive securities 695,54¢ 822,06.
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,499,97 1,027,130,13
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0¢
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0¢

11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractyad and retain personnel and other service prosj@dad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorizeCibmpensation Committee of the board of directorgrant awards, including incentive st
options, nongualified stock options, restricted shares andraiypees of incentive awards. The specific awarhtgd to an individual is bas
upon, in part, the individual’s position within FAT, the individual’s position within the Companyistor her contribution to the Company’s
performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantingmifams or other awards for an
aggregate of the greater of 8.0% of the outstansliages of the Company’s common stock up to ancedf 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgtterk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE’s employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintiependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC’s employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of ttedsres, as of September 30, 2012, 637,000 shawves/ksted and 46,000 shares were
forfeited. As of September 30, 2012 there was&ifriillion of total unrecognized compensation cestated to non-vested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan, based on the closing price efghares on the grant date. As of
September 30, 2012 there was $1.8 million of toteecognized compensation costs related to noredestare-based compensation
arrangements granted under the long term inceptarg based on the closing price of the shardseadjiarter end. That cost is expected t



recognized over a weighted-average period of 5aBsye
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The total fair value of shares vested, less thodeifed, during the quarters ended September@2 2nd September 30, 2011 was $74
thousand and $111 thousand, respectively, baséteariosing price of the stock on the vesting datke total fair value of shares vested, less
those forfeited, during the nine months ended Sejpée 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 was $244g¢hdwand $361 thousand,
respectively. For the quarters ended Septembe2®(@ and September 30, 2011, compensation expsseeiated with the amortization of
the fair value of the restricted stock was appratety $75 thousand and $112 thousand, respectiy the nine months ended September
30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, compensation s@ssociated with the amortization of the faiugadf the restricted stock was
approximately $242 thousand and $360 thousandectsply.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fdathr amount of the Company’s common stock innefor services provided to the
Company. Equity based awards granted to the inbkpe directors vest during the year of servicer the quarters ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, the Company recog#izethousand and $68 thousand, respectivelypokdiased compensation to
independent directors. For the nine months endgdeghber 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, the Gompeognized $225 thousand and
$203 thousand, respectively, of stock based congpiensto independent directors.

The following table presents information with respt the Company' restricted stock awards during the quarters amel months ende
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011:

For the Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date
Shares FairValue Shares Fair Value
Unvested shares outstandinigeginning o
period 695,20( 17.72 821,60( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (31,389 17.72 (31,379 17.72
Forfeited (217) 17.72 (226€) 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - end of
period 663,60( 17.72 790,00( 17.72

For the Nine Months Ende

September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Grant Date Fai Number of  Grant Date Fai
Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstandinigeginning o
period 758,40( 17.72 884,80( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (94,207 17.72 (93,079 17.72
Forfeited (598 17.7: (1,72€) 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - end of
period 663,60( 17.72 790,00( 17.72

12. Income Taxes

For the quarter and nine months ended Septemb&03@, the Company was qualified to be taxed a&I& Rnder Code Sections 856
through 860. As a REIT, the Company is not sultjgééderal income tax to the extent that it madealifying distributions of taxable incor
to its stockholders. To maintain qualificationsaREIT, the Company must distribute at least 90%sadnnual REIT taxable income to its
shareholders and meet certain other requiremeatsaaiassets it may hold, income it may generatetsishareholder composition. Itis
generally the Company’s policy to distribute tostereholders all of the Company’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, havebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and our taxable Ré&ilbsidiaries are subject to federal, state, acal taxes.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 thep@oynrecorded no income tax expense and duringubeer ended September 30, 2011
the Company recorded income tax benefit of $17lishnd. During the nine months ended Septemb&@@, the Company recorded
income tax expense of $2 thousand and during theemionths ended September 30, 2011 the Companygeetmcome tax expense of $645
thousand.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttzkholders for income te



purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitasgai return of capital.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from itsribined federal, state and city corporate statutmxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2010, 2011 and 2012 federal, statdcmal tax returns remain open for examination.

33




13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NageAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomgw/under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesisigti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetgheitbost of related liabilities. The Company agsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwvritten to agreed-upon specifications of seléairiginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market including@hborrowers with FICO scores generally greatant®50, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These fa@i@sonsidered to be important
indicators of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repasehagreements, the Company is exposed to courtyecpedit risk if counterparties to t
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgyrfails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Company’s counterparty credit
risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigaset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgregceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,aflextent to which collateral posted exceeds thmlilia to the counterparty. The amounts repo

as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativetacts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the exseibject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the sasnanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedéfcounterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposeass &0 the extent that the fair value of collatptatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collat@nd executing contracts and agreements withiphell€ounterparties to reduce exposure
to a single counterparty, where appropriate.

14. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWMAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. The Compensation Cottamiof the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decermp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, the Company paid FI2Aquarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdagsity (as defined in the management agreemerifeo€ompany. Effective November
28, 2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.86%npum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which réigucwill remain in effect until the
Company is current on all of its filings requirender applicable securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tleetgrs ended September 30, 2012 and Septemb20BDwere $13.1 million and
$13.3 million, respectively. Management fees aadrared paid to FIDAC for the nine months ended Sep& 30, 2012 and September 30,
2011 were $38.9 million and $39.2 million, respesly.

Under the management agreement, the Company gatddi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurredemitie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portd rent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officegeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incurredmnnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAG@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Coyppath modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsabygard of directors if the allocation becomegjimable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC’s otherdsimnd accounts). During the quarter and nine Insogrhided September 30, 2012 the
Company reimbursed FIDAC approximately $105 thodsamd $345 thousand for such expenses. Duringuaiger and nine months ended
September 30, 2011, the Company reimbursed FIDACoxpmately $166 thousand and $482 thousand fdn eMpenses.

Because of the Restatement, the Company and FID@éhded the management agreement on March 8, 201Be amendment, the
reduction in the management fee was memorializeéddition, FIDAC agreed to pay all past and fatexpenses that the Company and/or
the Audit Committee of the Company incur to: (1akesate the Company’s accounting policy relatedeoapplication of GAAP to its Non-
Agency RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restethe Company’s financial statements for the meciavering 2008 through 2011 as a
result of the Evaluation (the “Restatement Filingiid (3) investigate and evaluate any sharehdeévative demands arising from the
Evaluation and/or the Restatement Filing (the “Bligation”); provided, however, that FIDAC's obligan to pay expenses applies only to
expenses not paid by the Company’s insurers utgl@rsurance policies. Expenses shall includehout limitation, fees and costs incurred
with respect to auditors, outside counsel, and wtansts engaged by the Company and/or the Audit@ittee of the Company for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigatithe amount paid by FIDAC related to these exgeifiar the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2012 is $1.9 million, respelgtiand is presented on the Consolidated Statenoéif@perations and Comprehensive
Income as Expense recoveries from Manager.
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The amendment also provides that the independesttdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. The agime@nt also provides that the Company may termithetenanagement agreement effec
immediately if (i) FIDAC engages in any act of fcaumisappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agahe Company, (ii) there is an event
of any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC ingkeformance of its duties under the managemeeeagent, (iii) there is a commencement
of any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcyirsolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of FIDA@, (v) FIDAC is convicted of (including

a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an aidirétive services agreement with RCap Securities ["RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiades in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€map may also provide brokerage services to tragany from time to time. During tl
quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2842 phid to RCap were $41 thousand and $115 thdusspectively. During the quarter
and nine months ended September 30, 2011, feesqpRi@ap were $58 thousand and $113 thousand,atdsgie.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2012 agpiei@ber 30, 2011, 31,600 shares of restricted ssscled by the Company to FIDAC's
employees vested. During the nine months endete®éer 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 94,800ssbhrestricted stock issued by the
Company to FIDAC’s employees vested.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoinedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbifgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersamdtiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure under ASC 450ntingencies as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

16. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors declared common stock cagldehds of $0.09 per common share for the fouttarter of 2012, and the first three

quarters of 2013. For the four quarters of 2042,Gompany paid cash dividends totaling $0.38 pemaon share, and for the first three
quarters of 2013, the Company paid cash divideotasing $0.27 per common share.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operations skdug read in conjunction with t
consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyart on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to ideft forward-looking statements. Statements regagdhe following subjects, among others,
are forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strategy;

e our ability to maintain existing financing arramgents, obtain future financing arrangements aedetms of such arrangements,
particularly in light of the Restatement and othmatters discussed in this Form 10-Q;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reportsitiv the SEC;

e our expectations regarding materiality or sigmifice;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls jamdedures;

e material weaknesses in our internal controls démancial reporting;

e additional information that may arise from theparation of our financial statements;

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal costoser financial reporting of which we are not emtty aware or which have not been
detected;

e general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;

e the impact of and changes to various governmergrpms;

e our expected investments;

e changes in the value of our investments;

e interest rate mismatches between our investnardour borrowings used to finance such purchases;

e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepaynaest

e effects of interest rate caps on our adjustade-investments;

e rates of default, delinquencies or decreasedveggaates on our investments;

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lymalgiour mortgage-backed or other asset-backedriies;
e the degree to which our hedging strategies magay not protect us from interest rate volatility;

e the potential delisting of our common stock friva New York Stock Exchange
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e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and aimiktters;
e availability of investment opportunities in restate-related and other securities;

e availability of qualified personnel;

e estimates relating to our ability to make digitibns to our stockholders in the future;

e our understanding of our competition;

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,dbbt securities markets or the general economy;

e our ability to maintain our classification as BIR for federal income tax purposes; and

e our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1€

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoultt place undue reliance on these forwkmaking statements. These beliefs, assumption:
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our most raté&nnual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequemirt®ry Reports on Form 10-Q. Ifa
change occurs, our business, financial conditigajdity and results of operations may vary matiriom those expressed in our forward-
looking statements. Any forward-looking statemeyeaks only as of the date on which it is made. Nsks and uncertainties arise from time
to time, and it is impossible for us to predictsb@vents or how they may affect us. Except asnestiby law, we are not obligated to, anc
not intend to, update or revise any forward-lookstatements, whether as a result of new informafigare events or otherwise.

Special Note Regarding this Form 10-Q

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may beimedjby law (including, without limitation, to reftt the effects of the Restatement, as
defined below), the disclosure included in thisrRdi0-Q is presented as of September 30, 2012. rAeagy, this Form 109 does not refle
all events occurring after September 30, 2012 (@xae required by law, or as required by ASC &)sequent Eventsand we have not
undertaken to update each and every item includ#us Form 10-Q to reflect such events. Therefihis Form 10-Q should be read in
conjunction with our filings we have previously neadith the Securities and Exchange Commission sjulese to September 30, 2012.

Restatement

We restated our previously issued (i) Consolid&tdements of Financial Condition included in oumndal Report on Form 10-K as of
December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated Statemar@perations and Comprehensive Income, Consotidatatements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit), and Consolidate@tgments of Cash Flows for the years ended Dece®ih@010 and 2009, including the
cumulative effect of the restatement on Retainediegs (accumulated deficit) as of the earliestiquepresented as part of our Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011 (which we refas the Restatement). The Restatement also impaatédof the quarters for the periods
beginning with our inception in November 2007 tigbuhe quarter ended September 30, 2011. The icstanterim periods included in this
Form 10-Q have been restated to reflect the Reséate

As discussed in Note 2, we corrected amounts puslyiaeported in Total other-than-temporary impannlosses and the Portion of loss
recognized in other comprehensive income (losH)enConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income as the previous
presentation was reported on a cumulative basis clilrent presentation reflects only that portibtotal other-than-temporary impairments
(“OTTI") that is incremental for the reporting ped by giving consideration to OTTI reported andogedzed in prior periods. For the three
and nine month periods ended September 30, 204 préviously reported Total other-than-temporarpaimments losses of $151.3 million
and $293.9 million was reduced by $72.4 million £i82.0 million, respectively. This reduction waby offset by an adjustment to the
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss).
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In our Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31,20te did not present total OTTI correctly wherat@umulative credit losses were
greater than total OTTI in the Consolidated Statemsef Operations and Comprehensive Income. Totdll@sses should have been
reported net of unrealized gains on a security vithey occur in the same period as a credit loss.prhviously reported total OTTI and the
portion of loss recognized in other comprehengio®ine (loss) for three month period ended Marct2812 of $57.0 million and $8.6
million, respectively, were each reduced by $24ilian. Additionally, we noted an error in the peggation of reclassification items within
Comprehensive Income in the Consolidated Statenuéi@@perations and Comprehensive Income for theethmonths ended March 31, 2012.
This error resulted in a reduction of $47.1 milliorlUnrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleurities, net and a reduction in
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggems) included in net income (loss) of $15.5lioml. These two reductions are fully offset
by an increase in Reclassification adjustment &rosses included in net income (loss) for othanttemporary credit impairment losses of
$62.6 million. The errors noted related to Mardh 2012 will be corrected in our future filings thpesent such information. The nine month
period ended September 30, 2012 reflects the d@mesf the March 31, 2012 errors. For the yeadeginDecember 31, 2011 and December
31, 2010 the previously reported total OTTI lossE$418.1 million and $295.4 million, respectivednd the portion of loss recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consdaii&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive modi$61.0 million and $163.5
million, respectively, will be reduced by approxitelg $176.2 million and $255.7 million, respectiyeh our 2012 Form 10-K.

These corrections had no impact on any previowsgipnted Net other-than-temporary credit impairniestes, Net income (loss), Other
comprehensive income (loss), Net income (losskpare available to common shareholders or Consetidatatements of Cash Flows.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, either tirex indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commeruiaitgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextgmally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwisdompany, which we refer to as
FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income istment management company that is registered es@stment adviser with the

SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&gpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hagaald range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gagé pass-through certificates, collateralized gaa¢ obligations, or CMOs, and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gteedrby Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and
Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligdtions, or CDOs, and other real estate relatgdstments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigig objective by investing in a diversified intaent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievandus other asset classes, subject to maintadundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmermtegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.

We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyirggats within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current andggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpao@cted supply and demand, credit and markietcasicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well agintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptfrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment

portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to payddinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnsnt@estors.
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Our targeted asset classes and the principal imesgs we have made and in which we may in the dutwest are:

Asset Class
RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loal

Commercial Mortgage
Loans

Other Asset-Backed
Securities

Principal Investments

Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-graahe non-investment grade classes, including the
BB-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Agency RMBS
Interes-only RMBS

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgageddhaat conform to the underwriting guidelines of
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to asngg Guidelines; and jumbo prime mortgage
loans, which are mortgage loans that conform toMdpency Guidelines except as to loan

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage B#rat may have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringentttteadocumentation standards applied by ce
other first lien mortgage loan purchase programesh ss the Agency Guidelines, but have one or
more compensating factors such as a borrower wsthoag credit or mortgage history or
significant asset

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans twahply with the underwriting guidelines
the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Depagtrhof Veteran Affairs (VA) and which are
guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respectiv

Mortgage servicing rights associated witlidential mortgage loans, which reflect the valtie o
the future stream of expected cash flows from thdractual rights to service a given pool of
residential mortgage loai

First or second lien loans secured by multifamilggerties, which are residential rental prope!
consisting of five or more dwelling units; and mixessidential or other commercial properties;
retail properties; office properties; or industgabperties, which may or may not conform to the
Agency Guideline:

CMBS
Debt and equity tranches of CDr

Consumer and non-consumer ABS, includingstiwent-grade and non-investment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe
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Hedging Instrument Swaps

° Swaptions

. Futures

° Index options

° Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNiog-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans that been originated by select originators, inclgdire retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at 8egier 30, 2012 was weighted toward Nggency RMBS. At September 30, 2012, bz
on the outstanding principal balance of our intee@sning assets, approximately 75.1% of our imaest portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS,
15.7% of our investment portfolio was Agency RMB&d 9.2% of our investment portfolio was securdizesidential mortgage loans. At
December 31, 2011, based on the outstanding pahlogdance of our interest earning assets, appiteiyn75.4% of our investment portfolio
was Non-Agency RMBS, 21.1% of our investment pdidfavas Agency RMBS, and 3.5% of our investmentfotio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. We expect that oven#a term, our investment portfolio will continteebe weighted toward Non-Agency
RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT qualificatiand our 1940 Act exemption.

Following our initial public offering we initiallgengaged in transactions with residential mortgagdihg operations of leading commercial
banks and other originators in which we identiféed re-underwrote residential mortgage loans oviayeslich entities, and purchased and
securitized such residential mortgage loans. énpst we have also acquired formerly AAA-rated Mgency RMBS and immediately re-
securitized those securities. We sold the reguliAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained thedrateunrated mezzanine RMBS. More
recently we have engaged in transactions with easial mortgage lending operations of leading conemébanks and other originators in
which we identified and re-underwrote residentialrtgage loans owned by such entities, and ratlzer purchasing and securitizing such
residential mortgage loans, we and the originat@nmther entity, such as an investment bank, tsireid the securitization and we purchased
the resulting mezzanine and subordinate Non-Ag&iBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by sigfour asset allocations across these various alssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us yplividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. eifeect to take a long-term view of assets andliliais, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investmentdatand of a financial reporting period will notrsiticantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdaddmrer the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potestiains and to finance the acquisition of our ass@tsr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wea@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. eWpect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, wlaailable, repurchase agreements, warehousgiéasgisecuritizations, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. We may manage our dedirgerest rate risk by utilizing interest rate gesl, such as interest rate swaps, caps,
options and futures to reduce the effect of inten@te fluctuations related to our financing sosrce

We have elected and believe we are organized areldigerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Internal Reve
Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations pronagdhereunder (or the Code) If we qualify for tixaas a REIT, we generally will not

be subject to federal income tax on our taxablernme that is distributed to our stockholders. Femtiore, substantially all of our assets
consist of qualified REIT real estate assets (eftyipe described in Code Section 856(c)(5)). Weutate that at least 75% of our assets were
qualified REIT assets, as defined in the CodetHerquarter ended September 30, 2012 and for dreeygled December 31, 2011. We also
calculate that our revenues qualified for the 75E4TRncome test and for the 95% REIT income testlie quarter ended September 30,
2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011. Weradsall REIT requirements regarding the ownersiiipur common stock and the
distribution of our REIT taxable income. Therefdi@ the quarter ended September 30, 2012 angethieended December 31, 2011, we
believe that we qualified as a REIT under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of
our assets in loans secured by mortgages on rtaaé esd real estate-related assets. Subjectitaaiming our REIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption, we do not have any limitationghe amounts we may invest in any of our targateset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each asseisabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investsteategy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the I®felur net interest income, the market value ofassgets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svtlose directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may affect our operations and financial resuliVe also evaluate market information regardimgent residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managemmrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt.

Our net interest income, which reflects the amation of purchase premiums and accretion of distsowaries primarily as a result of
changes in interest rates, borrowing costs, chegiairment losses, and prepayment speeds, whilmisasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gege loans. Further description of these fac®pavided below.

Prepayment Spee. Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CorRtapayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteegss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, angeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortoavers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@sat, prepayment speeds tend to

decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymemetdspiend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases as the purchase premium on the horadtizes faster than

expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspesult in increased income and can extend ttiecbever which we amortize the
purchase premium.

For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchasadlacount, as prepayment speeds increase, thenamidincome we earn increases
from the acceleration of the accretion of the distanto interest income. Conversely, decreas@gsdpayment speeds result in decreased
income as the accretion of the purchase discotminterest income occurs over a longer periodceRdy, the correlation between interest
rates and prepayment has not followed normal trémdsertain asset classes. Due to economic higrdstime borrowers have been unable to
refinance their loans as underwriting standardsraree stringent and credit conditions remain regwue.

Rising Interest Rate Environme. As indicated above, as interest rates rise, gym@ent speeds generally decrease. Rising interes,
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbme. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resgjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decre&sesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjustable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatixed-rate assets would decline in value iising interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthden a rising interest rate environment to tleeat such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquirintrelised Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradeduse of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prich ¢hat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altled residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the subordinate Non-Agg RMBS. We attempt to mitigate credit risk ir thsset selection process. Prior to the
purchase of investments, we conduct a credit-riglet analysis of the collateral securing our imaest that includes examining borrower
characteristics, geographic concentrations, cuardtprojected delinquencies, current and projestedrities, and actual and expected
prepayment speeds among other characteristicditoats expected losses. We also acquire assetdwigidelieve to be of high credit
quality. We believe this strategy will generallyeleour credit losses and financing costs low.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as meadimgthe aggregate unpaid principal balance ofmoontgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgegalated securities and the other assets weiswaiso a key revenue driver. Generally,
as the size of our investment portfolio grows,dh®unt of interest income we receive increase® lditlger investment portfolio, however,
may result in increased expenses if we incur aofthti interest expense to finance the purchasercdssets.
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Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios
based on GAAP book value. The table and discussgtow present our estimated economic book valife.calculate and disclose this non-
GAAP measurement because we believe it represamstamate of the fair value of the assets we omar® able to dispose of, pledge, or
otherwise monetize.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitmatand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeaesibts to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneomg involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdetiseonotes or certificates, except as it relabe€$MC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2.

As it relates solely to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2@IM2, we have the ability to approve loan modifions and determine the course
of action to be taken as it relates to loans ihnéal default, including whether or not to procedth foreclosure. The notes and certificates
we own that were issued by the trusts are largghpslinated interests in those trusts. The triugt® no recourse to our assets other than
pursuant to a breach by us of the transaction deotsirelated to the transfer of the assets by tieettrusts, but are presented as if we own
100% of the trust.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan s$izations, we present the pre-securitized assetsterred into the consolidated trusts in
our Consolidated Statements of Financial CondiéisiNon-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated \WESecuritized loans held for
investment. Past securitization RMBS assets s@garsented as liabilities in our Consolidatede®tants of Financial Condition

as Securitized debt collateralized by non-AgencyB®vand Securitized loan debt, collateralized bysoaeld for investment. We have
presented the underlying securities we transfewede trusts for the calculation of GAAP book vaht fair value and recorded the
corresponding liability for the notes or certifieatsold to third parties at amortized cost. Falue adjustments that are not credit related are
recorded in Other Comprehensive Income. Creditedlanpairments are deemed other-than-temporaraendecorded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thdgruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure sepits the estimated value of the securities isbyddese trusts that we own. In contrast
to GAAP book value, our estimated economic booki@aonsiders only the assets we own or are allispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvatike, we consider only the fair value of the saiecertificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagially own. Accordingly, our estimated econotmiok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties. We believe this estimafgresents the value of the assets that we ownrarabée to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize as of the measurement date.

At September 30, 2012 the difference between GAddklvalue and estimated economic book value wasméted to be $384.6 million. .
December 31, 2011 the difference between GAAP badke and estimated economic book value was detedrtd be $159.2 million. This
difference is primarily driven by the value of tR®BS assets we have retained in thesga@iritization transactions as compared to thea
of consolidated loans and securities net of RMBstsssold and recorded at amortized cost in thaesdctions. In these re-securitization
transactions, we retained the subordinated, tylgicain-rated, first loss notes or certificates issuedhgydecuritization trusts. These secur
are complex, typically locked out as to principgpayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necedgappreciate or depreciate in tandem with
the broader Nogency RMBS market or with the loans on securitiemed by the trusts. The tables below presenadiigsstments to GAA
book value necessary to reflect our calculatioastimated economic book value as of September(® and December 31, 2011.
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September 30, 201

Estimated
GAAP Economic
Book Value Adjustments Book Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior $ 82 $ - $ 82
Senior intere-only 128,86! - 128,86¢
Subordinatet 509,06: - 509,06:
Subordinated intere-only 16,861 - 16,86"
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,235,57. (1,626,55) 1,609,01!
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,997,21 - 1,997,21.
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loan losse 1,136,92. (1,044,69) 92,22
Other asset 514,40¢ - 514,40¢
Total asset $ 7,538,99. $ (2,671,24) $ 4,867,74.
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,658,901 - 1,658,901
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,252,75; (1,252,75) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen: 1,033,92! (1,033,92) -
Other liabilities 175,22( - 175,22(
Total liabilities 4,120,80. (2,286,67) 1,834,12
Total stockholders' equi 3,418,18! (384,579 3,033,61
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,538,99, $ (2,671,24) $ 4,867,74.
Book Value Per Shai $ 3.3 $ (0.37) $ 2.9¢€
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December 31, 201

Estimated
GAAP Economic Bool
Book Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 1,02 $ - $ 1,02(

Senior intere-only 188,67 - 188,67

Subordinatet 606,89! - 606,89!

Subordinated intere-only 22,01¢ - 22,01¢

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,270,33 (1,789,51) 1,480,81:
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 3,144,53. - 3,144,583,
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loan losse 256,63. - 256,63:
Other asset 257,02 - 257,02°
Total asset $ 774713 $ (1,789,51) $ 5,957,62.
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 2,672,98! - 2,672,98!
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,630,271 (1,630,27)) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen: 212,77¢ - 212,77¢
Other liabilities 183,47. - 183,47.
Total liabilities 4,699,511 (1,630,27) 3,069,241
Total stockholders' equi 3,047,61! (159,239 2,888,38.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 774713 $ (1,789,51) $ 5,957,62.
Book Value Per Shai $ 297 $ (0.1 $ 2.81

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment. Should we sell the assets in our paotfale may realize materially different proceedsiirthe sale than we have estimated ¢
the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own
and the liabilities for which we are legally obligd, and is presented for informational use ofiliie estimated economic book value should
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, ayggregate basis, we purchased $17.6 million areved $317.7 million in principal

payments related to our Agency and Non-Agency RNB&folio. Our securitized loan portfolio receivgii83.8 million in paydowns during
the quarter ended September 30, 2012.
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The following table summarizes certain charactiesssf our portfolio at September 30, 2012 and Ddwer 31, 2011.

September 3 December 31,

201z 2011
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 7,02458 $  7,490,10
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 394558 $ 4,516,04
Leverage at peric-end 1.2:1 1.5:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.5:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Nor-Agency RMBS 75.1% 75.4&%
Senio 0.C% 0.C%
Senior, interest on 25.4% 26.1%
Subordinate 8.7% 9.7%
Subordinated, interest ot 2.1% 1.%
RMBS transferred to consolidated
variable interest entitie 38.% 37.7%
Agency RMBES 15.7% 21.1%
Securitized loar 9.2% 3.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 75.1% 74.$%
Adjustabl-rate percentage of portfol 24.%% 25.1%

*  Excludes cash and cash equivale

The following table presents details of each aslsets in our portfolio at September 30, 2012 andelder 31, 2011. The principal or
notional value represents the interest income egipalance of each class. The weighted averageeBcare weighted by each investment’s
respective principal/notional value in the assass!

September 30, 201

Principal or
Notional Weighted Principal
Value Average Weighted Writedowns
at Period- Weighted Yield Weighted Average 12 Weighted Weighted Weighted During
End Average Weighted  Weighted  at Period- Average 3 Month CPF Average Average Average Period
(dollars in Amortized Average Fai  Average End Month CPRa  at Period- Delinquency Loss Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi¢ Value Coupon (1) Perio-End End Pipeline 60+ Severity (22 Enhancemel thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Seniot $ 13t $ 58.31 $ 60.8¢ 0.0(% 11.2¢% 0.1(% 42.2% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.8'% $ -
Senior, interest onl $ 3,120,43 $ 448 $ 4.1 1.74&% 8.81% 18.01% 17.4% 20.6(% 51.8%% 0.0% $ -
Subordinate: $ 1,074,560 $ 4441 $ 47.31 3.11% 10.8% 19.7(% 18.52% 18.9¢% 51.4% 15.2¢% $ 15,54¢
Subordinated, interestor $ 264,05. $ 6.5¢ $ 6.3¢ 2.45%% 5.9¢% 14.95% 14.8%% 21.6% 45.45% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS transferred t
consolidated variable
interest entitie $ 4,79581 $ 53.4¢ $ 68.81 4.9% 15.44% 14.9% 14.2% 30.3% 58.68% 261% $ 61,08!
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $ 1,934,28 $ 103.1¢ $ 108.7¢ 4.65% 3.61% 25.7¢% 21.9/% NA NA 0.0% $ -
Securitized loan $ 1,134,99. $ 101.17 $ 101.6¢ 4.8%% 4.31% 43.51% 5.43% 1.0%% 5.02% 10.9% $ 752
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted Principal
Value Average Weighted Writedowns
at Period- Weighted Yield Weighted Average 12 Weighted Weighted Weighted During
End Average Weighted  Weighted  at Period- Average 3 Month CPF Average Average Average Period
(dollars in Amortized Average Fai  Average End Month CPRa  at Period- Delinquency Loss Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi¢ Value Coupon (1) Perio-End End Pipeline 60+ Severity (22 Enhancemel thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Seniot $ 1,118 $ 95.1: $ 91.5¢ 1.02% 2.95% 20.22% 14.5%% 30.9% 68.4%% 75.1% $ -
Senior, interest onl $ 3,73445 $ 53¢ $ 5.0¢ 1.9¢% 13.2¢% 15.8(% 17.02% 19.7% 49.9¢% 0.0% $ -
Subordinate: $ 1,378,89. $ 474¢ % 44.01 3.44% 9.51% 16.4¢% 17.5¢% 19.4¢% 50.0% 19.01% $ 19,96
Subordinated, interestor $ 277,56( $ 78¢ $ 7.9¢ 2.94% 9.9%% 13.31% 15.01% 24.3(% 45.8(% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS transferred t
consolidated variable
interest entitie $ 5,265,120 $ 551« $ 62.1] 5.32% 14.5¢% 12.4(% 14.7(% 32.2% 57.61% 41% $ 161,26
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $ 2,937,04 $ 103.0° $ 107.0¢ 4.66% 3.8%% 28.4% 24.5% NA NA 100.0% $ -
Securitized loan $ 268,12. $ 100.9: $ 83.1¢ 3.05% A4.7% 24.9% 23.51% 6.11% 39.8t% 8.8t $ 1,32

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgéRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldespurchase discount expected to be accretedntgest income, and a portion is
designated as Non-Accretable Difference, whichesgnts the contractual principal on the securiy ifnot expected to be collected. The
amount designated as M-Accretable Difference may be adjusted over timeghaon the actual performance of the securityriterlying



collateral, actual and projected cash flow fromhscallateral, economic conditions and other factiirthe performance of a security is more
favorable than previously estimated, a portiorhef amount designated as Non-Accretable Differerag Ime accreted into interest income

over time. Conversely, if the performance of a siggis less favorable than previously estimatbe, amounts designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may increase, resulting in an other-tteanporary impairment loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accret&lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts fer dmarters and nine months ended September 30,a2@12011.

For the Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non-
Accretable Accretable Accretable  Non-Accretable
Discount Difference Discount Difference
Balance at beginning of peri $ 1,20295 $ 1,773,190 $ 1,27327. $ 1,657,47.
Accretion of discoun (36,770) - (41,83¢) -
Principal Writedown: - (83,949 - (47,239
Sales (81,690 (10,059 (61) -
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairmen
losses - 10,01« - 150,36
Transfers from credit reser 44,88¢ (44,889 133,90¢ (133,909
Transfers to credit reser (10,907 10,901 (75,985 75,98t
Balance at end of peric $ 1,11847 $ 165522 $ 1,289,300 $ 1,702,68
For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, 201 September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non-
Accretable Accretable Accretable  Non-Accretable
Discount Difference Discount Difference
Balance at beginning of peri $ 1,176,01* $ 1,93193 $ 1,098,006 $ 1,879,447
Accretion of discoun (111,29) - (99,487 -
Principal Writedown: - (229,88¢) - (133,21)
Purchase 29,56: 16,06 29,02( 71,89:
Sales (47,75 (115,009 4,857 (104,345
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairmen
losses - 124,06! - 245,72(
Transfers from credit reser 152,82: (152,82) 472,10¢ (472,106
Transfers to credit reser (80,87¢) 80,87¢ (215,259) 215,25¢
Balance at end of peric $ 1,11847 $ 165522 $ 1,289,300 $ 1,702,68

Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finartt®ith repurchase agreements. We secure our bimgswinder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendée collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitveing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The
amount of this exposure is the difference betwheratmount loaned to us plus interest due to thateguarty and the fair value of the
collateral pledged by us to the lender includingraed interest receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part
of a margin arrangement for interest rate swapsattgain an unrealized loss position. If a coyvaely were to default on its obligation, we
would be exposed to a loss to a swap counterpattyetextent that the amount of our Agency RMBSIgdal exceeded the unrealized loss on
the associated swaps and we were not able to nettm/excess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdjpeaarcial institutions have experienced financiddiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tosibns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreementg tiave entered into interest rate swaps with smstitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swap$ fimancial institution counterparties as of ®apber 30, 2012 that are either domiciled
in Europe or are a U.S.-based subsidiary of a EBamemomiciled financial institution. The followirtgble summarizes our exposure to such
counterparties at September 30, 2012:
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Exposure as a

Repurchase Interest Rate Percentage of
Number of Agreement Swaps Total
Country Counterpartie: Financing at Fair Value Exposure@) Assets

(dollars in thousand:

France 1 217,157 $ - 3% 10,37¢ 0.14%
Germany 1 - (16,28¢) (16,28¢) -0.22%
Netherland: 1 260,08t - 12,62 0.17%
Switzerlanc 2 270,77! (42,787 (27,80¢) -0.31%
United Kingdon 1 190,45( - 6,61¢ 0.09%
Total 6 $ 938,47( $ (59,07) $ (14,477 -0.1%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgetliteral to each counterparty less the aggreafate
repurchase agreement financing and unrealizelossvaps for each counterpai

At September 30, 2012, we did not use credit defaushps or other forms of credit protection to hetlge exposures summarized in the table
above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impaese major European financial institutions, itasgble that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrapiens could be adversely affected by such eveWs.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesemular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otheralepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsadrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our countelipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpkasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amotiotir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine matihs Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

All prior results of operations presented belovthiis “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FmahCondition and Results of
Operations — Results of Operations for the QuagrtsNine months ended September 30, 2012 andrSlete30, 2011have been revised
reflect the effects of the Restatement.

For the purpose of computing economic net intérestme and ratios relating to cost of funds meastimoughout this report, interest
expense includes net interest payments on intexEsswaps, which is presented as Realized gaissg$) on interest rate swaps in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseleimcome. Interest rate swaps are used to hibdgacrease in interest paid on
repurchase agreements in a rising rate environnfergsenting the net contractual interest paynmniaterest rate swaps with the interest
paid on interest-bearing liabilities reflects ootal contractual interest payments. Managemeint\ed this presentation is useful to investors
because this presentation depicts the economie vdlaur investment strategy, by showing actuaregt expense and net interest

income. Where indicated, interest expense, innditerest payments on interest rate swaps, ésregf to as economic interest

expense. Where indicated, net interest incomeatifig interest payments on interest rate swapsfésred to as economic net interest
income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfkeasurements reflected in the Management’s Bigmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Less: Add:
Realized Realized
Net Net
GAAP Losses on Economic Losses on
Net Interest Net GAAP Interest Economic
Interest Rate Interest Interest Rate Interest

Income Swaps Income (1) Expense  Swaps Expense
For the Quarter Ended September 30
2012 $ 110,34( $ 5,29¢ $ 105,03( $ 34,35¢ % 5,29¢ $ 39,65«
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 139,57. $ 5,19¢$ 13437 $ 2195: % 5194 % 27,143
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 113,29: $ 4,39¢$ 108,89. $ 36,37t % 4,39¢ $ 40,77:
For the Year Ended December 31,2 $ 570,16t $§ 1592¢$ 554,22. ¢ 134,85 $ 1592¢( $ 150,78
For the Quarter Ended December 31,

2011 $ 136,84! $ 4,28 $ 132,55¢ $ 30,69¢ $ 4,285 $ 34,98!
For the Quarter Ended September 30
2011 $ 152,78 $ 450( $ 148,28¢ $ 32,79 % 4,50 $ 37,29:

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
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Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average interest earning assets of $12ighbéind $11.8 billion for the quarters ended Seytiter 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011,
respectively, and $10.6 billion and $11.7 billiaw the nine months ended September 30, 2012 artdr8ber 30, 2011, respectively. Our
primary source of income is interest income eawredur assets. Our interest income was $144.7omidind $185.6 million for the quarters
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2@pectvely, and $455.9 million and $537.5 milliar the nine months ended September
30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively yiie on our portfolio was 4.68% and 6.29% for therters ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, respectively, and 5.71% drids for the nine months ended September 30, a0dZSeptember 30, 2011,
respectively. For the quarter ended Septembe2@®I2, as compared to the quarter ended Septemb26€ 30, interest income decreased by
$40.9 million due primarily to a decrease in yieldthe portfolio. The decrease in yield in ourtfmio is a result of less higher yielding Non-
Agency and Agency RMBS investments and an incraakaver yielding investments in securitized loaRer the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 as compared to the nine montlexieSeptember 30, 2011, interest income decrdégsgdl.6 million due primarily to a
decrease in average interest earning assets obtfioh and lower overall yields on the portfoli@.he decrease in yield in the portfolio is a
result of less higher yielding Non-Agency and AgeRMBS investments and an increase in lower yigdinvestments in securitized loans.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $4.4 billion aéd! ®illion and total economic interest expens&28.7 million and $37.3 million for tl
quarters ended September 30, 2012 and Septemb20BD, respectively. We had average borrowed fafi@el.5 billion and $6.2 billion ar
total economic interest expense of $107.6 milliod &115.8 million for the nine months ended Sepemd®, 2012 and September 30, 2!
respectively. Our average cost of funds was 3.Gl%d 2.33% for the quarters ended September 30, 2082 September 30, 20
respectively. Our average cost of funds was 3.19% 249% for the nine months ended September 302 20id September 30, 20
respectively. The economic average cost of fundseased by 128 basis points and the average bedréunmds decreased by $2.0 bill
during the quarter ended September 30, 2012, wbherpared to the quarter ended September 30, 20ELattiibute the increase in
annualized cost of funds to increases in secudtd=bt collateralized by loans held for investmeritich has a higher cost of funds rate
repurchase agreements and securitized debt caliatt by NonAgency RMBS as well as increased LIBOR rates oversame period of t
prior year.

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typeazaliglated to LIBOR and the term of 1
financing. The table below shows our average beetbfunds, economic interest expense, averageot@shds (inclusive of realized losses
on interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBO&age six-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBORtreé to average six-month
LIBOR, and average cost of funds relative to averge- and six- month LIBOR.

Average Cost of Funds

Average One- Average
Month Average Cos Cost of
LIBOR of Funds Funds
Average Average Relative to Relative to Relative to
Average Economic Average One- Six- Average Average Average
Borrowed Interest Costof  Month Month Six- Month ~ One- Month  Six- Month
Funds Expense (1  Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended

September 30, 201 $ 4,397,21. $ 39,65¢ 3.61% 0.24% 0.73% (0.4<%) 3.31% 2.88%
For the quarter ended

June 30, 201 $ 4,718,443 $ 27,14 2.3(% 0.24% 0.7%% (0.4%%) 2.06% 1.5%
For the quarter ende

March 31, 201: $ 4,358,33 $ 40,77¢ 3.7%% 0.2€% 0.76% (0.5(%) 3.4&% 2.98%
For the year ende

December 31, 201 $ 5,989,11 $ 150,78 2.52% 0.2%% 0.51% (0.28%) 2.2%% 2.01%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 201 $ 5,317,000 $ 34,98 2.65% 0.2% 0.6% (0.42%) 2.31% 1.95%
For the quarter ende

September 30, 201 $ 6,390,22. $ 37,29: 2.3%% 0.21% 0.47% (0.2€%) 2.12% 1.86%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatg swaps
Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended Septembe2@®IR was $128.1 million and net income per basitdiluted share was $0.12. Our net
loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 @9 $nillion and net loss per basic and dilutedsheas $0.06. Net income increased by
$188.1 million for the quarter ended September2BQ2 as compared to September 30, 2011. The s®ipaiet income and our net income
per share for the quarter ended September 30, @0t8mpared to September 30, 2011 is attributalflsater impairment losses and incre:
realized gains on sales of investments in the nuperiod. These increases were offset in paddwnfining net interest income, primarily fre
a decline in Agency RMBS assets quarter over quartd higher financing costs of securitized delliateralized by loans.
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Our net income for the nine months ended SepteBMme2012 was $249.1 million and earnings per basicdiluted share was $0.24. Our net
income for the nine months ended September 30, 2@%1$94.6 million and earnings per basic and efilighare were $0.09. Our net income
was generated primarily by interest income on autfplio. Net income increased by $154.5 milliam the nine months ended Septembel
2012 as compared to September 30, 2011. The Beiranet income and our net income per shardéonine months ended September 30,
2012 as compared to September 30, 2011 is atthleuta fewer impairment losses and increased eljgins on sales of investments in the
quarter ended September 30, 2012. These incregsesffset in part by declining net interest inegmrimarily from a decline in Agency
RMBS assets in the nine months ended Septemb&038,compared to the prior period.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2012 gpigi@ber 30, 2011, we recognized approximately $a0ln and $150.6 million of net
other-than-temporary credit impairment losses imiegs related to Non-Agency RMBS as fair valued #e present value of cash flows
expected to be collected were below amortized ddst.decrease in OTTI is attributable to improviaig values as well as favorable changes
in cash flows expected to be collected. The faverahange in cash flows is mainly attributabléniprovements in expected cash flow of
Non-Agency RMBS, and increasing prepayment speedsghaieisult in an increase in the present value sif @aws expected to be collected.

During the nine months ended September 30, 201ZBeaptember 30, 2011, we recognized approximate2y $1million and $245.9 million
of net other-than-temporary credit impairment lesseearnings related to Non-Agency RMBS as faluesa and the present value of cash
flows expected continue to show improvements overptrior period.

Other-than-temporary impairment charges, which wecegnized on Non-Agency RMBS, reflect changesuinestimate of the extent and
timing of cash flows expected to be collected tiefiect consideration of the estimated future panance of the underlying collateral,
including the expected principal loss over the tefrthe security. At September 30, 2012, we hatbagjunrealized loss of $383 thousand
related to Agency RMBS and a gross unrealizeddd$20.3 million related to Non-Agency RMBS. Impaents on Agency RMBS in an
unrealized loss position at September 30, 2012a@msidered temporary and not credit related. Uiregllosses on Non-Agency RMBS for
which no OTTI was recorded during the quarter amsalered temporary based on an estimate of thefloags expected to be collected for
such RMBS, which considers recent bond performamceexpected future performance of the underlyoigteral. Significant judgment is
used in estimating both our cash flows expectdaktoollected for its Non-Agency RMBS and the credinponent of OTTI. Refer to
“Significant Accounting Policies” in the accompanginotes to the consolidated financial statemeantabre information regarding the
recognition of OTTI.

The table below presents the net income (loss) samfor the quarters and nine months ended SepteB@h@012 and 2011.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

For the Quarter Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 36,57¢ $ 68,77¢ $ 139,92¢ $ 197,71¢
Interest expens (2,28)) (3,149 (7,080 (9,160
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 108,12( 116,80! 315,96: 339,76!
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (32,07%) (29,647) (85,609 (95,007)
Net interest income (expens 110,34( 152,78 363,20 433,32:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (2,719 (78,950) (47,269 (161,929
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceline
(loss) (7,300 (71,610 (76,80 (83,989
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (10,019 (150,56() (124,065 (245,91
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (4,429 (25,317 (14,607 (34,98)
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,299 (4,500 (14,890 (11,649
Gains (losses) on interest rate sw (9,725 (29,817) (29,497 (46,62%)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (15,399 (17,600 22 (1,617
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 69,15t 58 85,16¢ 1,78
Total other gains (losse 44,03 (47,359 55,69( (46,449
Net investment income (los 144 ,36: (45,12%) 294,82¢ 140,95¢
Other expenses:
Management fee 13,051 13,252 38,86: 39,15«
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,910 - (1,910 -
Net Management fee 11,141 13,25 36,95! 39,15¢
Provision for loan losses, n 49€ - (39€) 1,44:
General and administrative expen 4,65¢ 1,83( 9,18¢ 5,13
Total other expense 16,29t 15,08 45,74¢ 45,73:
Income (loss) before income taxe 128,06¢ (60,207 249,08: 95,22¢
Income taxe: - (177 2 645
Net income (loss $ 128,06¢ $ (60,030 $ 249,08. $ 94,58

Economic Net Interest Income

Our economic net interest income, which equalgéstdncome excluding interest earned on cash asld equivalents less interest expense
and realized losses on interest rate swaps, to#dled.0 million and $148.3 million for the quartersded September 30, 2012 and September
30, 2011, respectively, and $348.3 million and $421illion for the nine months ended September28d,2 and September 30, 2011,
respectively. Our net interest spread, which exjtra yield on our average assets for the pergxitiee economic average cost of funds for
the period, was 1.07% and 3.96% for the quarteds@iBeptember 30, 2012 and September 30, 201 &ctesdy, and 2.52% and 3.63% for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and Sept&®, 2011, respectively. We attribute the decih economic net interest income in
2012 compared to 2011 to an increase in our cdsinafs as a result of higher interest expense ouréized debt collateralized by loans held
for investment and an increase in LIBOR year oesry

The table below shows our average earning assktstbial interest earned on assets, yield on @eenaterest earning assets, average debt
balance, economic interest expense (including fiieeteof realized losses on interest rate swap®rage cost of funds, economic net interest
income, and net interest rate spread for the peroesented.

Economic Net Interest Income

Average Yield on Economic Economic Ne

Earning Interest Average Interest Economic Interest

Assets Earned on InterestEarnin¢c Average Det  Expense Average Cost Income (1)  Net Interes
Held (1) Assets (1 Assets Balance (2) of Funds (2) Rate Sprea

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ende

September 30, 201 $12,366,20 $ 144,69: 4.68% $ 4,397,21. $  39,65¢ 3.61% $ 105,03 1.0%%
For the quarter ende
June 30, 201 $ 9,898,15. $ 161,52 6.52% $ 4,718,43 $ 27,147 2.3(% $ 134,37! 4.25%
For the quarter ende
March 31, 201: $ 9,664,090 $ 149,66! 6.1%% $ 4,358,33 $  40,77¢ 3.74% $ 108,89: 2.45%

For the year ende



December 31, 201 $11,438,44 $ 705,01( 6.1¢% $ 5,989,11 $ 150,78 2.52% $ 554,22 3.6%
For the quarter ended
December 31, 201 $10,636,68 $ 167,54( 6.3(% $ 5,317,000 $ 34,98 2.6% $ 132,55! 3.61%
For the quarter ended
September 30, 201 $11,803,04 $ 185,58: 6.2%% $ 6,390,22. $  37,29: 2.32% $ 148,28! 3.96%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatg swaps
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Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, wbERMIBS (primarily Agency RMBS) with a carrying valwf $795.1 million for realized
gains of $69.2 million. During the quarter endeg@t®mber 30, 2011, we sold RMBS with a carrying gadfi$2.3 million for realized gains
$58 thousand. During the nine months ended SepteBih@012 and September 30, 2011, we sold RMBB avitarrying value of $858.2
million and $669.1 million for realized gains of%8 million and $1.8 million, respectively. The irase in sales during the quarter was to
reduce leverage in the portfolio, improve liquidityd take advantage of market conditions to regj@es in the portfolio.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions

During the nine months ended September 30, 201Zinaaced the purchase of $1.2 billion of jumbaneiwhole loans by securitizing ¢
selling senior bonds to third party investors fet proceeds of $1.1 billion. We retained the sulmadg tranches of the securitizations. We
not re-securitize RMBS or jumbo prime whole loansimy the quarter and nine months ended Septenthe(3.1.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $13.1 million $&8.3 million for the quarters ended Septembe28@2 and September 30, 2011,
respectively, and $38.9 million and $39.2 millian the nine months ended September 30, 2012 andr8ker 30, 2011, respectively. The
management fee is based on our stockholders’ egsitiefined in the investment management agreement.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses wér& #illion and $1.8 million for the quarters endgepbtember 30, 2012 and September
30, 2011, respectively, and $9.2 million and $5illion for the nine months ended September 30, 221@® September 30, 2011,
respectively. Our G&A expenses increased primalilg to servicing fees associated with the CSMQ20M1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2
securitizations.

Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and futiperses that we and/or our Audit Committee incu(tpevaluate our accounting policy
related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Agg®iVIBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restate ofinancial statements for the period
covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Etadn (the “Restatement Filing”); and (3) investagand evaluate any shareholder
derivative demands arising from the Evaluation antlie Restatement Filing (the “Investigation”)ppided, however, that our Manager’s
obligation to pay expenses applies only to expensépaid by our insurers under our insurance f@sicExpenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respeauditors (to the extent such fees and costs examaedriginally estimated audit fees of
$542,400), outside counsel, and consultants endaged and/or our Audit Committee for the EvaluafiRestatement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by our Manager eeldb these expenses for the three and nine menttesd September 30, 2012 is $1.9
million, respectively, and is presented on the @bdated Statements of Operations and Comprehehsieene as Expense recoveries from
Manager.

Total Management fee and G&A expenses as a pegeepfaverage total assets were 0.80% and 0.61%dajuarters ended September 30,
2012 and September 30, 2011, respectively, and®&@@ 0.66% for the nine months ended Septemb&@@ and September 30, 2011,
respectively.

We reimburse FIDAC for our pro rata portion of regetephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemachinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates nexglifor our operations. During the quarter endept&nber 30, 2012 and September 30,
2011, we reimbursed FIDAC approximately $105 thodsand $166 thousand for such expenses, respgctiizelring the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, we uesadh FIDAC approximately $345 thousand and $488ghnd for such expenses,
respectively.
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The table below shows our total management fee G expenses as compared to average total agset@vaerage equity for the periods
presented.

Management Fees, G&A Expenses and Operating ExpenBatios
Total Managemer  Total Managemer

Total Managemer Fee and G&A Fee and G&A

Fee and G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Average

Expense! Assets Equity

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 15,79¢ 0.8(% 1.92%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 15,44 0.75% 1.95%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 14,89¢ 0.74% 1.92%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 59,23¢ 0.75% 1.7¢%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 14,94¢ 0.68% 1.87%
For the quarter ended September 30, Z $ 15,08: 0.61% 1.7¢%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $128.1 million for the quarteded September 30, 2012 and our net loss was &@ién for the quarter ended
September 30, 2011, respectively. Our net income $249.1 million and $94.6 million for the ninemtits ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, respectively. The table bslmws our economic net interest income, realizéusg#osses) on sale of assets and the
credit related OTTI, realized and unrealized géliosses) on interest rate swaps and 10s, total ganant fee and G&A expenses, and
income tax, each as a percentage of average equoiythe return on average equity for the periosdsemted. Our return on average equity
increased from (7.08%) for the quarter ended Septer®0, 2011 to 15.53% for the quarter ended Sdme0, 2012 and from 3.59% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011 to 10.27%danine months ended September 30, 2012 prinduiyto a decline in losses related to
OTTI and increase in realized gains on sales adstments, offset in part by lower economic netrggeincome.

Components of Return on Average Equity

Realized and

Unrealized
Gains
Realizec (Losses)
Gains on Interest Total
Economic Net (Losses) on Rate Swaps Management
Interest Sales and and Fee & G&A Income Tax Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average IOs/Average  Expenses/Avera; Benefit/Averag Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualize
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 12.7/% 7.11% (2.4(%) (1.92%) 0.0(% 15.5%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 16.99% (8.14%) (1.7(%) (1.95%) 0.0(% 5.1%%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 14.01% (4.1&%) 2.41% (1.92%) 0.0(% 10.32%
For the year ended December 31, 2 16.47% (9.1€6%) (1.4€%) (1.7€%) (0.02%) 4.08%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 16.5% (7.82%) (1.55%) (1.87%) 0.0(% 5.35%%
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 17.4% (17.7%%) (5.0€%) (1.7€%) 0.02% (7.08%)

* Includes the effect of realized losses on interate swap:
Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortg:
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diuis and other general business needs. Our mirstiprces of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsnf our investments, borrowings under securitizegtiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsénfeinm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishbe Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment,gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengwcally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tensh€@nditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that celalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertidegdid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders.
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We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydgeby relying on the cash flows generated by ouestments. These cash flows are
primarily comprised of monthly principal and intet@ayments received on our investments. We nsaysall our investments and utilize
those proceeds to meet our short term liquiditydse® enter into non-recourse financing of our @sbeough sales of securities to third
parties of re-securitization transactions that weehcompleted in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated shotérm liquidity requirements. However, a declingtia value of our collateral could cause a tempoiquidity shortfall
due to the timing of margin calls on the financargangements and the actual receipt of the caateteto principal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfiylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell istveents, potentially at a loss, or issue debt
or additional equity securities in a common stoffkring.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitalaand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and reecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otrending facilities
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tliéing date required by the SEC (including 1
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thei®ées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we areligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing ForBir8gistration statements to raise additional gqrapital until filings with the SEC have be
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S-3 during this time period will have gatere impact on our ability to quickly
access the public capital markets because we vsutdquired to file a long-form registration staégtand wait for the SEC to declare such
registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalatésed above, we may enter into warehouse faa|itise commercial paper, term financing
CDOs, and longer dated structured repurchase agrésmThe use of any particular source of capitdl funds will depend on market
conditions, availability of these facilities, arfgetinvestment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&#&$.1 million and $206.3 million at September 3012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $271.7 million and $340.7 million for théne months ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, respectively. The cashdadby operating activities decreased for the nioaths ended September 30, 2012
when compared to the nine months ended Septemb&03@ due primarily to a decrease in economidmetest income earned on the
portfolio of $73.4 million.

Our investing activities provided net cash of apprately $880.3 million for the nine months endegp@mber 30, 2012 and resulted in the
net use of cash of approximately $2.0 billion toe hine months ended September 30, 2011, resplgctidering the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 we generated cash from saRBIBS investments of $943.4 million and principaypeents of $1.2 billion related to all
our investment assets offset by purchases of $llichtin jumbo prime whole loans. During the nimonths ended September 30, 2011 we
utilized cash to purchase $3.7 billion in secusitiehich was offset by proceeds from asset sal&6109.9 million and principal payments of
$1.0 billion related to all our assets. In 201&,wsed cash in investing activities and in 201% eess provided by investing activities as we
had a significant decline in purchases of RMBS g#es from the prior year.

Our financing activities resulted in the net useasgh of approximately $900.2 million for the nmenths ended September 30, 2012 and
provided net cash of approximately $1.6 billion flee nine months ended September 30, 2011, regplyctiThe nine months ended
September 30, 2012 reflected net payments on reasecagreements of $1.0 billion as compared tpnoeeeds from repurchase agreements
of $2.4 billion for the nine months ended Septen8ier2011. In addition, the nine months ended Seipée 30, 2012 reflected net proceeds
from securitized debt borrowings of $1.1 billiorsasiated with the issuance of debt in the CSMC 2001 and CSMC 2012-CIM2
securitization trusts, as compared to net proc&eds securitized debt borrowings of $311.0 millimm the nine months ended September 30,
2011.
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We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portfddimely through repurchase agreements and loaosgh the securitization market. In
addition, we may from time to time sell securitéesa source of cash to fund new purchases.

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thainéng maturities on our RMBS repurchase agreesneate as follows.

September 3 December 3:

2012 2011
(dollars in thousands

Overnight $ 35,43( $ -
1-29 days 1,130,03 1,368,94!
30 to 59 day: 144,59! 836,00
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 35,47t 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 313,36¢ 296,20:
Total $ 1,658,900 $ 2,672,98!

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weousgance our operations with Agency RMBS. Ourrdeuparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiahyvfrom lender to lender. The size of the hairefiiects the perceived risk associated with
holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircut pregidenders with a cushion for daily market valuezemoents that reduce the need for a
margin call to be issued or margin to be returredamal daily increases or decreases in RMBS salgeur. At September 30, 2012, the
weighted average haircut on our repurchase agreéemes 5%. Despite the haircut, repurchase agresraghject us to two types of margin
calls. First, there are monthly margin calls thattaiggered as principal payments and pre-paynemetseceived by us as these payments
lower the value of the collateral. As a result,ex@ect to receive margin calls from our repurcla@senterparties monthly simply due to the
principal paydowns on our Agency RMBS. The monttrijncipal payments and pre-payments are not knovadivance and vary depending
on the behavior of the borrowers related to thesdyihg mortgages. Second, counterparties makeimaeadls or return margin as a result of
normal daily increases or decreases in asset valaemldition, when financing assets using stashfilamm of SIFMA Master Repurchase
Agreements, the counterparty to the agreementdilpioets its exposure to us on all outstandingirefpase agreements and issues margin
calls if movement of the asset values in the agggeegxceeds their allowable exposure to us. Amieah asset values could create a margin
call, or may create no margin call depending orcthnterparty’s specific policy. In addition, ceerparties consider a number of factors,
including their aggregate exposure to us as a wéanudethe number of days remaining before the réymse transaction closes prior to issuing
a margin call. See Note 5 to our Consolidated FiizdiStatements for a discussion on how we detegrifia fair values of the RMBS
collateralizing our repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average repurchaaadesmband repurchase balance at each period etftefperiods presented. Our balance at
period-end tends to have little fluctuation frone tiverage balances except in periods where wedarstiag the size of our portfolio by using
leverage. Our repurchase agreement balance arSlegt 30, 2012 decreased compared to our averpgehase agreement balance for the
quarter ended December 31, 2011 due to sales afog@MBS during the fourth quarter of 2011.

Average Repurchase Balan:
Repurchase at
Period Balance Period Enc
(dollars in thousands
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 1,954,95! $ 1,658,90!
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 241282 $ 2,362,08!
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 2,554,29! $ 2,502,87!
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 3,843,68. $ 2,672,98'
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 3,379,53' $ 2,672,98!
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 4,301,25. $ 4,171,119

We are not required to maintain any specific debtquity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverigehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt September 30, 2012 and December 31, 20dtbtal debt was approximately $3.9
billion and $4.5 billion, which represented a debequity ratio of approximately 1.2:1 and 1.5dspectively. We include repurchase
agreements and securitized debt in the numeratourodebt-to-equity ratio and stockholders’ eqaitythe denominator.
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We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-degeghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yat- Our borrowings at period end ai
shapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period. Our borrowings
will change as we implement our portfolio and nisnagement strategies to address changing mamk@itions by increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during penaasn we raise capital, and in certain instanceswag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capifakraSince our average borrowings and period enaings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period jolesa more accurate representation of our expasuhe risks associated with leverage.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigton agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stookdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed keatwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of oomaon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the quarters endgdeBeber 30, 2012 or September 30, 2011. As a rekalir failure to file our SEC filings
by the filing date required by the SEC (includihg grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 undeBSeéaurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended), we will not be able to issue shares b€ommon stock under the equity distribution agreenuntil filings with the SEC have
been timely made for a full year.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Dividendv@stment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPPDRB&P provided holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiicadly reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shams @bmmon stock. The DRSPP was
administered by the Administrator, Computershangiigy the nine months ended September 30, 2012ised $117 thousand by issuing
39,000 shares through the DRSPP. During the nomtims ended September 30, 2011 we raised $786ahd iy issuing 214,000 shares
through the DRSPP. The DRSPP was suspended wherergeno longer current on our filings. As a réesfilour failure to file our SEC
filings by the filing date required by the SEC (unding the grace period permitted by Rule 12b-28asrthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended), we will not be able to issue sharesroDRSPP until filings with the SEC have beerelyymade for a full year.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 weadtHividends to common shareholders totaling4s8tllion, or $0.09 per
share. During the quarter ended September 30, 204 fleclared dividends to common shareholder§irigt133.4 million, or $0.13 per
share.

During the nine months ended September 30, 201@ewiared dividends to common shareholders tot&izly .8 million, or $0.29 per
share. During the nine months ended Septembet03d, we declared dividends to common sharehotdébng $410.5 million, or $0.40 ¢
share.

The Board of Directors has initiated a regular teréy dividend of $0.09 per common share for thertio quarter of 2012, and for each que
of 2013.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarabrgf September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Related Party Transactions

The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managenges¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initiekrm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The CompersatCommittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managguarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockhold&ysity (as defined in the management agreeméiftpctive November 28, 2012, the

management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosg Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will raman effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.
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We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forat<incurred under the management agreementditian, the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationbege expenses are allocated between ou
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigmoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpag@ur Manager as calculated at each
guarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

Because of the Restatement, we amended the manaigagneement on March 8, 2013. In the amendmentemorialized the reduction in
the management fee. Additionally, our Manager egite pay all past and future expenses that weoandf Audit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the iapfibn of GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolich@ Evaluation); (2) restate our
financial statements for the period covering 20408ugh 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the &estent Filing); and (3) investigate and
evaluate any shareholder derivative demands ariging the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Fifthg Investigation); provided, however,
that our Manager’s obligation to pay expenses appnly to expenses not paid by our insurers uvodeinsurance policies. Expenses shall
include, without limitation, fees and costs incarith respect to auditors, outside counsel, amsglbants engaged by us and/or our Audit
Committee for the Evaluation, Restatement Filind eire Investigation.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. Addititiy, we may terminate the management agreemesttafé immediately if (i) our Manag
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation ofl&) or embezzlement against the us, (ii) theam isvent of any gross negligence on the

of our Manager in the performance of its dutiesarrttie management agreement, (iii) there is a carmnement of any proceeding relating to
our Managers bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissoluof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conuvicté (including a plea of no
contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the quarters ended September 30, 2012 andrSiegte80, 2011, our Manager earned management f&8d. million and $13.3 million
and for the nine months ended September 30, 20d Saeptember 30, 2011, our Manager earned managéeesrmf $38.9 million and $39.2
million, respectively and received expense reimbmmsnts of $105 thousand and $166 thousand andtB845and and $482 thousand,
respectively. From our inception through 2009, anager waived its right to require us to pay jour rata portion of rent, telephone,
utilities, office furniture, equipment, machinemydaother office, internal and overhead expensesinManager and its affiliates required for
our operations.

Our Manager uses the proceeds from its managemei foart to pay compensation to its officers amgloyees who, notwithstanding that
certain of them also are our officers, receive ashccompensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administratem@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnt clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such services.
RCap may also provide brokerage services to us fioeto time. During the quarter ended and nimatins September 30, 2012, fees pa
RCap were $41 thousand and $115 thousand, respligctiduring the quarter and nine months endede®eiper 30, 2011, fees paid to RCap
$58 thousand and $113 thousand, respectively.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stookitdvlanager’s employees and members of our boadit@ftors on January 2,

2008. During the quarters ended September 30, 20d Zeptember 30, 2011, 31,600 shares of restistbek we had awarded to our
Manager's employees vested and of those vestedssBa7 and 226 shares were forfeited, respectivi2lying the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, 94h200ssof restricted stock we had awarded to ourdgers employees vested and of
those vested shares 598 and 1,726 shares weriddrfespectively. We did not grant any incentiveards during the quarter and nine
months ended September 30, 2012. At Septemb&03@,and September 30, 2011 there were approxiynéédl,000 and 790,000 unvested
shares of restricted stock issued to employee$AE, respectively. For the quarter ended SepterBbe2012 and September 30, 2011,
compensation expense associated with the amoadtizeafithe fair value of the restricted stock wapragimately $75 thousand and $112
thousand, respectively. For the nine months eissgrddember 30, 2012 and 2011, compensation expesgeiated with the amortization of
the fair value of the restricted stock was appratety $242 thousand and $360 thousand, respectively
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gdgiions at September 30, 2012. The estimatedipahepayment schedule of the
securitized debt is based on expected cash flowseafesidential mortgage loans or RMBS, as adjufsteactual on the underlying collateral
of the debt.

September 30, 201

Greater
Oneto Three to Than
Within One Three Five or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,658,900 $ - 9 - $ - $ 1,658,901
Securitized dek 640,02 737,93! 388,35« 454,84, 2,221,161
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreem
Q) 3,74( 5 - - 3,74t
Interest expense on securitized debi 88,81: 111,47! 68,807 193,20: 462,29!
Total $ 2,391,48 $ 849,41! $ 457,161 $ 648,04: $ 4,346,10
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaiféSeptember
30, 2012

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have esablished for the purpose of facilitating offdrade sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secitities.

Capital Requirements

At September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, weabawlaterial commitments for capital expenditures.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stackholders. To insure liquidity is adequate,tdsvice and operating needs are satisfied
before declaring dividends.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilitix® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamg@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apagved in accordance with GAAP and our distribwtioill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distitié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKRlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adativities and financial condition are measuredwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.
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Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssacd to become regulated as an investment comyoahgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, ottyabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a vi
exceeding 40% of the value of the issedotal assets (exclusive of U.S. Government seéesiand cash items) on an unconsolidated ba
“40% test"). Excluded from the term “investmentséties,” among other things, are securities issmedhajority-owned subsidiaries that re
on the exemption from registration provided by #&c8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Adselding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we nfayn in the future, rely on the

exemption from registration provided by Section)&)XC) of the Investment Company Act. Section)@}C), as interpreted by the staff of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEEGYires us to invest at least 55% of our assétaortgages and other liens on and
interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estassets) and at least 80% of our assets in QuatjfiReal Estate Assets plus real estate relatec
assets. The assets that we acquire, thereforéméted by the provisions of and the rules andutations promulgated under the Investment
Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etdbsd “Companies Engaged in the Business of AatgMortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)ddd the concept release, the SEC is reviewinggrgdve issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. We are monitoring developrsertated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of September 30, a8d2December 31, 2011, we were in compliance thighexemption from registration
provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) af thvestment Company Act.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alput Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve risk can be quantified from monitoring therent market environment as well as
economic forecasts. We seek to actively manageitia to earn sufficient compensation to justiking those risks and to maintain capital
levels consistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiableHoans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Ttredit risk related to these investments pertainke ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduphout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigneprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrguaefiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary padfolanagement system, as well as third party soéwgstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit aludition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crité@iece we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acqtoreour portfolio are reviewed by us
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based critéiar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS irdsg utilizing its proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéatimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on NorAgency RMBS and other ABS. This analysis includesvaluation of the collateral characteristicpsufing the RMBS suc
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoairgother pertinent factors.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratieinsconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities, secuittiZeg-securitization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenaetsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,mparily interest rate swap agreements,
swaptions, futures and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effect on Net | nterest I ncome

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihices between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financifigcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmentd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @#erate investments may remain substantially urgdnd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amsgtsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtr#saredit losses to us, which could adversefeefour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwfect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels levprepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedife of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayndamay cause losses on such transactions.

I nterest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdlatgion using various financial models and
current market information. Different models andtiimoelologies can produce different durations fordhme securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatiity in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factonzsact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ antth difference may be material to our
stockholders.

I nterest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewsety’s interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be sutiesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttation by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBSeffagtively be limited. This problem will be magieifl to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps. ¢bigd result in our receipt of less coupon incomeuor adjustable-rate mortgages or
RMBS than we need in order to pay the interest angiur related borrowings. These factors coulceloaur net interest income or cause ¢
loss during periods of rising interest rates, whiohld have a negative effect on our financial ¢o, cash flows and results of operations.
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I nterest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®WBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdyéng, have interest rates based on
indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of savhat shorter maturities than, the interest rad&as and re-pricing terms of the mortgages
and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indindse-pricing terms of our mortgage assets andwngding sources will not be identical,
thereby creating an interest rate mismatch betwassats and liabilities. Our cost of funds woul@ljkrise or fall more quickly than would ¢
earnings rate on assets. During periods of charigtegest rates, such interest rate mismatcheslcmdatively impact our financial conditic
cash flows and results of operations. To mitigaterest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedsjiregegies discussed above. Our analysis
of risks is based on FIDAC's experience, estimategjels and assumptions. These analyses rely orlsatiich utilize estimates of fair
value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual ecormaainditions or implementation of investment dexisiby our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimsignd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding the value of hedges) may be adverselctfteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifi@stthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value solely as it relates to our
Agency RMBS portfolio (including interest rate swagdges) should interest rates go up or down 25 75 basis points, assuming par
movements in the yield curves. All changes in meand value are measured as percentage changeth&grojected net interest income
and portfolio value at the base interest rate soc@ndhe base interest rate scenario assumegstteates at September 30, 2012. Estimates
regarding prepayments and other activities are raadach level of rate shock. Actual results cdiffiér significantly from these estimates.

September 30, 201
Projected Percentay
Change in Net  Projected Percentay

Interest Change in Portfolio
Change in Interest Ra Income Value
-75 Basis Point (3.72%) 0.71%
-50 Basis Point (2.55%) 0.1&%
-25 Basis Point (1.2€%) (0.060%
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point 1.1€% (0.19%)
+50 Basis Point 2.24% (0.3(%)
+75 Basis Point 3.38% (0.44%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessméihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in prejeaymates will accelerate the amortization of passhpremiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are acceleratdcecreted into interest income
increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdiew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmés or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimier an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates as the boimgwosts are effectively fixed for the duratiortloé fixed-rate portion of the related

assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesimg interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bddging instrument. This could have a negatiygaict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed aftier énd of the hedging instrument while the incoamaed on the fixed and hybrid
adjustable-rate assets would remain fixed. In extreituations, we may be forced to sell assetsaiotain adequate liquidity, which could
cause us to incur losses.
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Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
in other comprehensive income excluding IO RMBSchtare recorded in earnings. The estimated fairevaf these securities fluctuates
primarily due to changes in interest rates, prepayrapeeds, market liquidity, credit quality, atlden factors. Generally, in a rising interest
rate environment, the estimated fair value of thsesririties would be expected to decrease; corlyemnsex decreasing interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to increase. As markétility increases or liquidity decreases,
the fair value of our investments may be adversepacted.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealmproperty directly in the future. Residenfiabperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (saglan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmemtsstcuction quality, age and design; demograplitofa; natural disasters; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valueeafdtiateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whighl@ also cause us to incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related dehtstghe effects of major interest rate changesg@reerally seek to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasdg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreemémtsave a range of different maturities, terms, dirations and interest rate
adjustment period:

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @mi caps, floors and forward sales to adjustriterést rate sensitivity of our
investments and our borrowing

e using securitization financing to lower averagestof funds relative to short-term financing védicfurther allowing us to receive the
benefit of attractive terms for an extended peabtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments not
included in the securitization; al

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleedst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgrimad gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and t@arg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestniak include an analysis of our interest
rate sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference tlween interest-earning assets and interest-bebainitities maturing or re-pricing within a
given time period. A gap is considered positivewlthe amount of interest-rate sensitive asseteelscthe amount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whendh®ount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities eadt® interest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/tend to adversely affect net interest incomeijenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a peribf@iting interest rates, a negative gap would temdesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet interest income adversely. Because differguesyof assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to claas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instibmt were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor
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The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at September 30,
2012. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimn a particular period were determined in ademrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period incvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they maturd does include the effect of the interest ratepswal he interest rate sensitivity of our
assets and liabilities in the table could vary satitgally based on actual prepayments.

(dollars in thousands)

Within 1Yearto3 Greater than
3 Months 3-12 Months Years 3 Years Total

Rate sensitive asse $ 1,184,100 $ 1,77257 $ 1,218,98 $ 8,148,61. $ 12,324,27
Cash equivalent 458,10° - - - 458,10°
Total rate sensitive ass¢ 1,642,20i 1,772,57! 1,218,98. 8,148,61. 12,782,38
Rate sensitive liabilitie 177,82: 557,76: 79,09’ 1,820,26: 2,634,94
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 146438 $ 121481 $ 1,13988 $ 6,328,335 $ 10,147,43
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 146438 $ 2679,19 $ 3,819,080 $ 10,147,43
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity ga
as a
percentage of total rate sensitive asse¢ 11% 21% 30% 7¢%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sgapce, estimates, models and assumptions. Hmadgses rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatidrinvestment decisions by our manager
may produce results that differ significantly fréhe estimates and assumptions used in our modelharprojected results shown in the
above tables and in this Form 10-Q. These anaby@m&sin certain forward-looking statements andsaitgect to the safe harbor statement set
forth under the heading, “Special Note RegardingMaod-Looking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 1K+or the year ended December 31, 2011, we disditisat management had identified a material wea
in our internal controls over financial reportigs of December 31, 2011 we determined that thegdeahd operating effectiveness
controls over the selection, application and revidwthe implementation of accounting policies te@e amounts recorded and disclosed
fairly stated in accordance with GAAP were insuffit. Specifically, we determined that our resosraed level of technical account
expertise within the accounting function were ificignt to properly evaluate and account for thenptexity of our investments in Non-
Agency RMBS, InteresBnly Strips, impairment of securitized loans heald ivestment, and related disclosures in accomlavith generall
accepted accounting principles. Additionally, altbb the Restatement did not result in changesstofical estimates of the fair value of
investments in RMBS or our estimates of the relagesh flows expected to be collected that senaelzessis for our estimates of fair value
income recognition, our review controls over sigraht estimates and the financial reporting prosesse not designed precisely enoug
prevent or detect a material misstatement. Spadlificthere was no precise and direct independeview and validation of inputs usec
significant estimates such as the determinatiotheffair value, impairment, or interest income tediato our investments in RMBS ¢
securitized loans held for investment. There was ab evidence of an independent validation ofutatons used in significant account
estimates to ensure the accounting policies wepeogpiately implemented. In addition, there wasawidence of review of the schedt
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the diolased financial statements by a person, othen ttiee preparer, with the neces:
competency and authority. As a result, income ahérethan-temporary impairment related to certaon¥gency RMBS were material
misstated. This material weakness resulted in the Restatement.
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In response to the material weakness describedealthwing the fourth quarter of 2011, we engagddading accounting firm to advi
management with respect to accounting standareésunes support and engaged a leading professiondteg organization specializing
accounting and reporting matters to aid managemihtkey facets of the Restatement. During 201@ 2013, we hired additional resour
in accounting policy, middle office and financiaporting roles, including technical accounting sgbjmatter resources and a new C
Financial Officer.

Additionally, we have been adding resources anccgs®es to remediate the aforementioned materiakngsa regarding the dir
independent review and validation of inputs usedigmificant estimates such as the determinatiotheffair value, impairment, or inter
income related to our investments in RMBS and seéred loans held for investment. In addition teetadding of resources and
formalization of a middle office function, we hagagaged two additional independent pricing serviodest and validate the models we
to value our portfolio. Growing the accounting ipg] middle office and financial reporting groupshieicreased the opportunity to furt
segregate duties and improve the technical compgifithe accounting function and improve our cohémvironment.

In addition, our management, with the participatidour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finandifficer, has identified the following
additional issue related to our material weaknessternal control over financial reporting. Prewsly reported amounts in total OTTI losses
and the non-credit portion of loss recognized ihedtomprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidgtatements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income were reported on a cumulbtiges. As discussed in our immaterial restaterisatosure in this Form 10-Q, the
current presentation reflects only that portionadél OTTI loss that is incremental for the repagtperiod giving consideration to OTTI
reported and recognized in prior periods. Accorlyinptal OTTI losses and the portion of loss retdagd in other comprehensive income
(loss) in the Consolidated Statements of OperamusComprehensive Income was changed for the @0d 2012 periods presented, for
comparability purposes.

As a result, our Chief Executive Officer and Chig#fiancial Officer determined that the aforementtbngaterial weaknesses in our inte
controls over financial reporting were not remeeliaind that our disclosure controls and proceduere not effective as of September
2012 and as of the date of this report.

Based upon the substantial work performed duriegRbstatement process and the procedures perfahmoedih the filing of this Form 1Q,
we have concluded that the consolidated finandatements for the periods covered by and includethis Form 109 are prepared
accordance with GAAP and fairly present in all mialerespects, our financial position, results pemtion and cash flows for each of
periods presented herein.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebkaweno changes in our “internal control over feiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934rasnded) that occurred during the period coveyettiis quarterly report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, our internal control over financigporting.

PART Il. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatsdor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by deitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstaints. This investigation is
ongoing.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigmand letters alleging, among other things,tieatlirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahtzols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Directake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Corttee is currently reviewing the demand lettersanrection with its ongoing investigation
arising from the restatement of our historical ficial statements. At the conclusion of its invgtion, the Audit Committee will make
recommendations to the Board of Directors abowtpropriate response to the letters. At this tiweecannot predict the outcome of the
matters addressed in these shareholder demand eftkese and other potential actions that mayldmbagainst us, whether with or without
merit, may divert the attention of management fammbusiness, harm our reputation and otherwise lmasg a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl0-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, wibsétrisk factors related to (i)
risks associated with the Restatement and relatgtens, (ii) risks associated with adverse develepts in the mortgage finance and credit
markets, (iii) risks associated with our managen@ relationship with our Manager, (iv) risks régd to our business, (v) risks related to
our investments, (vi) regulatory and legal riskasi)(risks related to our common stock, and (M@iX risks. You should carefully consider the
risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for the yemded December 31, 2011. As of the date hettesre have been no material changes to
the risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for thear ended December 31, 2011.
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Iltem 6.

Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

31.1

31.2
32.1

32.2

Exhibits

The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1tie Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmmated herein by
reference)

Articles of Amendment of Chimera InvestmentgiZmation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's@®rt on Form 8-K filed on

May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retae

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéeetin by reference

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmated herein by
reference)

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Oféir of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30h@fSarban«Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, pard to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finano@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SSgction 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS Instance Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.CAL  Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.DEF  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created**

XBRL

Exhibit 101.LAB  Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.PRE  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgnt *

XBRL

*%

Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the follmrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensi

Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of September 8@223Unaudited) and December 31,
2011 (derived from the audited consolidated finahsiatements); (ii) Consolidated Statements ofr@tmns and Comprehensive Income for
the quarters and nine months ended September 302,8@ September 30, 2011, (iii) Consolidated State of Stockholders' Equity (Defic
for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 apigi@ber 30, 2011; (iv) Consolidated Statementsashd-lows for the nine months en
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011; amibfels to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: _/s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: November 27, 201

By: _/s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Officel
and principal financial officer of the registra
Date: November 27, 20!
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1.

2.

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic
Based on my knowledge, this report does not co@ynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéade a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant&éments, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdortbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control ouaatficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atlte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtisils report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilmes management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 27, 20:

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




1.

2.

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rob Colligan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic
Based on my knowledge, this report does not co@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant&éments, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdortbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control ouaatficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtisils report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that itvas management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 27, 20:

/s/_Rob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended
September 30, 2012 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef'Report”), I, Matthew Lambiase ,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@zley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiadtn and results of operations of the

Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 27, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

September 30, 2012 to be filed, I, Rob ColligamieCFinancial Officer of the Company, certify, puant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiatdtn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/sl Rob Colligar

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
November 27, 201



